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( ) (@)
73,198,461.09 79.25
3,792,119.35 4.11
2,357,573.45 2.55
1,936,859.52 2.10
1,786,670.95 1.93
1,643,021.84 1.78
1,229,485.69 1.33
1,052,566.33 1.14
1,015,994.18 1.10
883,657.56 0.96
554,936.96 0.60
507,512.81 0.55
238,090.28 0.26
90,196,950.01 97.65
2,172,860.42 2.35
( 9§A?ggi81o.43) 100.00
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@)
(2024 )
) ( ) ( ) )
FORTRESS INTERMEDIATE 7.500 2031/6/1 1,395,000 1,402,194.25 1,430,349.30 .55
CONDOR WERGER SUB
o8 enee 7.375 | 2030/2715 | 1,470,000 | 1,237,588.70 | 1,371,401.22 .48
MOZART DEBT MERGER 3.875 20207471 | 1,323,000 | 1,301,600.00 | 1,233,660.46 .34
CCO HOLDINGS LLC/CCO
HOLDING CAPITAL 4.250 2031/72/1 | 1,300,000 | 1,328,470.83 | 1,105,019.51 20
CORPORATION
WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL 8.625 |  2030/4730 | 1,000,000 |  936,221.25 | 1,039,156.00 12
LBM ACQUISITION LLC 6.250 | 202071715 | 1,070,000 | 1,082,462.50 |  945,553.67 .02
UKG INCORPORATED 6.875 20317271 | 900,000 |  900,000.00 |  925,050.60 .00
WINERVA VERGER SUB
I 6.500 |  2030/2715| eas,000| 873,140.00 |  890,717.31 .96
CARNIVAL CORPORATION 6.000 20207571 | 820,000 |  820,000.00 |  818,077.10 .89
DUN AND BRADSTREET
10 | J0h AN B 5.000 | 2020712715 | 849,000 |  824,001.40 |  805,977.78 87
11 | FMG RESOURCES AUG 2006 5.875 |  2030/4715 | 805,000 |  796,225.00 |  793,272.76 .86
12 | WYNN RESORTS FINANCE 7.125 | 203172715 | 760,000 |  763,081.25 |  792,146.48 .86
13 | CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR 9.000 | 2028/0s15 | 735,000 |  743,474.50 |  780,600.87 85
AVANTOR FUNDING
1 | (NANTOR FoN 4625 | 2028/7/15| 803,000 | s07,002.60 |  772,572.72 84
15 | TRANSDIGM INCORPORATED 5.500 2027/11/15 770,000 769,333.31 759,735.90 .82
UBER TECHNOLOGIES
16 [ JBER TECHNOL 4500 | 202078715 | 762,000 |  680,940.75 |  734,936.16 .80
SPIRIT AEROSYSTEMS
17 [ SPIRIT AEROS 0.375 | 2020711730 | 670,000 | 687,498.06 |  725,585.24 79
18 | INOLA MERGER CORPORATION a.750 | 202075115 | 770,000 | 770,000.00 | 724,208.79 78
19 | DIAVOND FOREIGN 8.500 | 203071071 670,000 8610158 |  713,265.92 77
20 | noBLE FinancE 11 LLC 8.000 | 2030/4715| 674,000 | 678,484.81|  707,812.60 77
21 | INsicHT EnTERPRISE 6.625 | 2032/5/15 | 685,000 | 693,903.20 |  705,350.71 76
TENET HEALTHCARE
2 | [r e 6.125 | 2030/6/15| 700,000 | 687,412.98 |  702,377.90 76
23 | DT MIDSTREAM INCORPORATED 4.125 2029/6/15 750,000 762,850.00 700,446.77 .76
24 | TRANSOCEAN INCORPORATED 8.750 | 2030/2715 | 740,000 |  732,773.10 |  699,424.54 76
25 | enereLex Lo 9.000 | 2027710715 | 675,000 |  612,063.00|  695,856.15 75
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE
26 | DILOERS FIR 5.000 20307371 | 725,000 |  698,381.07 |  693,613.30 75
27 | oLvwpus wr us HoLDINGS 90.750 | 2028711715 | 650,000 |  690,250.00 |  690,905.80 75
28 | ALLIED UNIVERSAL HoLDCO 7.875 | 2031/2715 | 660,000 |  659,012.50 |  671,429.23 73
29 | HuB INTERNATIONAL LTD 7.250 | 2030/6/15 | 650,000 |  650,000.00 |  670,335.25 73
30 EtgARWAY ENERGY OPERATING 3.750 | 203172715 | 750,000 |  709,146.25 |  664,250.26 72

55/262




EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2024 )
(2024 )
(©)
2024
17 257,561 39,263 6.95 1,059
18 186,226 28,388 6.33 965
19 184,842 28,177 6.73 1,026
20 163,909 24,986 6.56 1,000
21 150,292 22,911 6.50 991
22 129,758 19,780 5.78 881
23 140,007 21,343 6.82 1,040
24 119,895 18,277 6.45 983
25 97,603 14,879 5.88 896
26 94,287 14,373 6.10 930
2023 95,287 14,526 5.92 902
92,677 14,128 5.80 884
10 90,508 13,797 5.69 867
11 94,156 14,353 5.95 907
12 96,497 14,710 6.14 936
2024 95,313 14,530 6.10 930
94,249 14,367 6.07 925
94,287 14,373 6.10 930
91,775 13,990 5.99 013
91,667 13,974 6.01 916
91,770 13,989 6.04 921
92,370 14,081 6.10 930
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AR AL ORREDNE
CEEIL) (19984 3F258~ 20244 7R318) (ER*EL)
| REZEH (%L, £0) T
140 F---mmmmmmmpemm s — 1 OHhORARSEE CEFIL. £8) - 1400
120 | 11,200
100 {1,000
80 | 800
60 D 2y - - - - = - == === SWEL TN D £00
40 ! 400
20 FR - oo 200
0 - - ==
1935 A 3 EAC AR
( )
17 0.3641 55.50
18 0.3381 51.54
19 0.3531 53.83
20 0.3525 53.74
21 0.3485 53.13
22 0.3081 46.97
23 0.2740 41.77
24 0.2528 38.54
25 0.2645 40.32
26 0.3010 45.88
2023 0.0258 3.93
0.0241 3.67
10 0.0270 4.12
11 0.0254 3.87
12 0.0237 3.61
2024 0.0275 4.19
0.0283 4.31
0.0241 3.67
0.0305 4.65
0.0265 4.04
0.0251 3.83
0.0276 4.21
(2024 31 11.3885
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)
17 1.303
18 4.056
19 11.897
20 2.712
21 4.398
22 6.337
23 22.734
24 1.718
25 4.736
26 8.861
) () 100x (a b) b
a ( )
b ( )

SHER WITSHER FISSHER $ISSHES WMIOSHER WO1SHEY W220HES  WOISHES WOJALER NOGAHEN M2BSHEN
(8% (015538318) (0IES38318) (2007%3A308) (0MSS3RIE) (01323FINE) (00SIANB)  (2021S3AE)  (0SLSIANE) (ME3SIAIE  (EENE

% ISR (%) =100% (a—b).“b
a=SENMBEA0 1 OS50 OREEGRE+ SN0 FEEOa N
b=4EMMOETNCED 1 DNOORAEESEE (CSiEOH)

58/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4
17 1,522,550 1,522,550 3,869,660 3,869,660 37,038,340 37,038,340
18 902,920 902,920 8,526,650 8,526,650 29,414,610 29,414,610
19 362,930 362,930 2,307,290 2,307,290 27,470,250 27,470,250
20 429,220 429,220 2,901,170 2,901,170 24,998,300 24,998,300
21 246,370 246,370 2,140,280 2,140,280 23,104,390 23,104,390
22 1,484,450 1,484,450 2,157,680 2,157,680 22,431,160 22,431,160
23 237,980 237,980 2,148,960 2,148,960 20,520,180 20,520,180
24 165,850 165,850 2,102,610 2,102,610 18,583,420 18,583,420
25 222,290 222,290 2,210,490 2,210,490 16,595,220 16,595,220
26 162,180 162,180 1,297,580 1,297,580 15,459,820 15,459,820
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http://ww.sumitrustgas.com/investor-information/fund-prices/
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€Y)

2024 31
2024 31 2023 31
( ) ¢ ) ( ) C )
93,072,881 14,188,030 97,123,221 14,805,464
11,040 1,683 49,905 7,608
1,168,673 178,153 279,426 42,596
1,540,049 234,765 1,355,016 206,559
580 88
95,792,643 14,602,630 98,808,148 15,062,314
15,459,820 2,356,695 16,595,220 2,529,775
459,934,506 70,112,416 465,542,590 70,967,312
(381,107,382) (58,096,009) (384,534,540) (58,618,445)
( ) 11 94,286,944 14,373,102 97,603,270 14,878,642
)
373,032 56,865 373,534 56,942
74 11
450,908 68,736 482,159 73,500
120,160 18,317 62,506 9,528
561,525 85,599 286,679 43,701
1,505,699 229,529 1,204,878 183,672
95,792,643 14,602,630 98,808,148 15,062,314
) 15,459,820 16,595,220
15 6.10 930 5.88 896
( )
2024 11
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2024 31 2023 31
6,464,699 985,479 6,328,355 964,694
3,360,519 512,278 (10,453,118) (1,593,473)
9,825,218 1,497,756 (4,124,763) (628,779)
,13 571,745 87,157 613,128 93,465
,13 571,745 87,157 613,128 93,465
,13 142,944 21,790 153,240 23,360
,13 47,572 7,252 51,080 7,787
,13 47,572 7,252 51,080 7,787
49,947 7,614 39,880 6,079
49 7 628 96
163,216 24,881 240,216 36,619
1,594,790 243,110 1,762,380 268,657
8,230,428 1,254,646 (5,887,143) (897,436)
(4,524) (690)
8,230,428 1,254,646 (5,891,667) (898,126)
8,230,428 1,254,646 (5,891,667) (898,126)
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
16,595,220 465,542,590 (384,534,540) 97,603,270
8,230,428 8,230,428
(4,803,270) (4,803,270)
162,180 786,897 949,077
(1,297,580) (6,408,550) (7,706,130)
13,569 13,569
15,459,820 459,934,506 (381,107,382) 94,286,944
18,583,420 475,415,331 (374,103,672) 119,895,079
(5,891,667) (5,891,667)
(4,539,201) (4,539,201)
222,290 1,096,930 1,319,220
(2,210,490) (10,948,527) (13,159,017)
(21,144) (21,144)
16,595,220 465,542,590 (384,534,540) 97,603,270
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2024 31

1998
1990

2015 12 30
2014 22
EU AIFMD
AIFM AIFMD AIFM AIF
2022 2 24

COVID-19

2022 12 23
SFDR 6 ESG
SFDR 4 (1)(a)

102
FRS102

FRS102

FRS102

FRS102

2024 28
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2024 31 2023 31
464,479 1,127,082
(2,176,485) (7,012,523)
(1,712,006) (5,885,441)
6,032,530 (1,673,078)
(959,478) (2,895,291)

(527) 692

5,072,525 (4,567,677)
3,360,519 (10,453,118)
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2024 31 2023 31

117 39,550
JP

10,923 10,355
11,040 49,905

2024 31 2023 31
13 141,815 145,585
13 141,815 145,585
13 35,392 36,327
13 11,721 12,109
47,599 44,826
13 11,721 12,109
60,845 85,618
450,908 482,159

0.60%
2024 31 571,745 2023 613,128
141,815 2023 145,585
0.60% 0.55% 10 0.50%
2024 31 571,745
2023 613,128 141,815 2023 145,585
0.15%
2024 31 142,944 2023
153,240 35,392 2023 36,327
0.05%
2024 31 47,572 2023 51,080
11,721 2023 12,109
0.05%
2024 31 47,572
2023 51,080 11,721 2023 12,109
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2024 31 2023 31
10 10
10
30
10
2024 31 2023 31

16,595,220 18,583,420
162,180 222,290
(1,279,880) (2,204,190)
15,477,520 16,601,520
11 (17,700) (6,300)
15,459,820 16,595,220
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2024 31
2023 27 0.0225 371,528
2023 30 0.0249 409,380
2023 29 0.0239 389,969
2023 28 0.0238 384,805
2023 30 0.0258 415,173
2023 28 0.0241 385,535
2023 10 27 0.0270 429,295
2023 11 29 0.0254 402,093
2023 12 28 0.0237 372,669
2024 30 0.0275 429,779
2024 28 0.0283 440,012
2024 271 * 0.0241 373,032
4,803,270
* 2024 31
2023 31
2022 27 0.0200 361,260
2022 27 0.0220 394,889
2022 29 0.0220 388,896
2022 28 0.0204 356,461
2022 30 0.0223 387,489
2022 29 0.0223 381,904
2022 10 27 0.0196 331,343
2022 11 29 0.0249 418,260
2022 12 29 0.0216 360,862
2023 30 0.0234 392,244
2023 27 0.0235 392,059
2023 30 * 0.0225 373,534
4,539,201
* 2023 31
2024 31 2023 31
10,717 77,608
29,835 51,357
49,947 39,880
72,717 71,371
163,216 240,216
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2024 31 * 2023 31 *
0.01% 0.05%
4.41% 3.58%
3.11% 10.81%

13.48% 12.39%
25.53% 25.31%
16.40% 14._.00%
13.12% 14.25%
11.01% 12.12%
11.65% 6.68%

1.28% 0.81%
100.00% 100.00%

2024 31
S&P

4.41% 2023 3.58%
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31
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4,856,161
2024 31 2023 31
3.18% 3.93%
2024 31 3.18
3.18
2023 31
93,083,921 11,040 93,072,881
97,173,126 1,507,832 95,665,294
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2024 31 5.99 5.01
2023 31 5.39 5.46
30
12
2024 31
373,032 373,032
74 74
450,908 450,908
120,160 120,160
561,525 561,525
1,054,791 450,908 1,505,699
2023 31
373,534 373,534
482,159 482,159
62,506 62,506
286,679 286,679
722,719 482,159 1,204,878
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2024 31 2023 31

2024 31

748,000 798,000

2023 31
3,829,000 4,286,000
2024 31
78,889
2023 31
44,191

10%
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FRS102 11.27

2016 FRS 34.22 IFRS 13
GAAP
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2024 31 2023 31
2024 31
92,324,881 92,324,881
748,000 748,000
93,072,881 93,072,881
2023 31
93,294,221 93,294,221
3,829,000 3,829,000
97,123,221 97,123,221
2024 31 2023 31
FRS102
2024 31 2023 31
94,347,727 97,640,314
(60,783)* (37,044)*
94,286,944 97,603,270
* 2024 31 2023 31 (0.08)% (0.04)%
2024 31 2023 31
1.08000 1.08715
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13.
2024 31
FRS102
2024 31 96.20%
2023 95.94%
14.
15.
2024 31 * 94,347,727 6.10
2023 31 * 97,640,314 5.88
*
11
16.
17.
18.
2024 11
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2024 31
2024 31
()
0.93% (2023 31 1 1.14%)
FMG Resources
5.88%, 4/15/30 (Series <144A7) 805,000 792,104 0.84
4.38%, 4/01/31 (Series <144A7) 100,000 89,346 0.09
881,450 0.93
2.50% (2023 31 : 1.83%)
NCL Corporation
5.88%, 2/15/27 (Series <144A~) 400,000 395,261 0.42
8.38%, 2/01/28 (Series <144A~) 385,000 406,674 0.43
8.13%, 1/15/29 (Series <144A7) 20,000 21,156 0.02
Viking Cruises Ltd
5.88%, 9/15/27 (Series <144A7) 125,000 122,678 0.13
9.13%, 7/15/31 (Series <144A7) 340,000 372,091 0.39
Weatherford International
8.63%, 4/30/30 (Series <144A~7) 1,000,000 1,043,993 1.11
2,361,853 2.50
4.11% (2023 31 : 2.81%)
1011778 BC ULC/New Red Finance Incorporated
3.88%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~) 120,000 112,792 0.12
4.38%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A7) 125,000 118,043 0.13
3.50%, 2/15/29 (Series <144A7) 585,000 534,271 0.57
4.00%, 10/15/30 (Series <144A<) 170,000 151,171 0.16
Bausch Health Companies Incorporated
11%, 9/30/28 (Series <144A7) 325,000 216,938 0.23
Bausch N Lomb Escrow
8.38%, 10/01/28 (Series <144A<) 560,000 577,830 0.61
Enerflex Ltd
9.00%, 10/15/27 (Series <144A7) 925,000 948,725 1.01
Nova Chemicals Corp
8.50%, 11/15/28 (Series <144A7) 330,000 351,210 0.37
Open Text Corporation
6.90%, 12/01/27 (Series <144A7) 145,000 149,903 0.16
3.88%, 12/01/29 (Series <144A7) 485,000 432,377 0.46
4.13%, 12/01/31 (Series <144A7) 310,000 271,991 0.29
3,865,251 4.11
1.21% (2023 31 : 0.38%)
Foreign Diamond
8.50%, 10/01/30 (Series <144A7) 670,000 707,019 0.75
Transocean Incorporated
8.75%, 2/15/30 (Series <144A~) 465,000 436,257 0.46
1,143,276 1.21
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()
1.77% (2023 31 : 1.98%)
Altice France S.A.
8.13%, 2/01/27 (Series <144A~) 810,000 624,770 0.66
5.50%, 10/15/29 (Series <144A~) 200,000 135,455 0.14
Constellium SE
5.63%, 6/15/28 (Series <144A~) 250,000 243,054 0.26
3.75%, 4/15/29 (Series <144A~7) 295,000 265,498 0.28
Iliad Holding
6.50%, 10/15/26 (Series <144A7) 205,000 203,135 0.22
7.00%, 10/15/28 (Series <144A7) 200,000 197,901 0.21
1,669,813 1.77
1.19% (2023 31 : 0.66%)
Ardagh Packaging Finance PLC/Ardagh Holdings USA
Incorporated
4.13%, 8/15/26 (Series <144A7) 495,000 448,158 0.48
5.25%, 8/15/27 (Series <144A~7) 665,000 418,950 0.44
Atlas LuxCo
4.63%, 6/01/28 (Series <144A7) 275,000 249,957 0.27
1,117,065 1.19
0.88% (2023 31 1 1.04%)
Adient Global Holdings Limited
4.88%, 8/15/26 (Series <144A7) 855,000 833,740 0.88
833,740 0.88
1.41% (2023 31 : 1.57%)
Royal Caribbean Cruises
5.50%, 8/31/26 (Series <144A~) 1,050,000 1,040,991 1.10
5.38%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A~) 200,000 197,150 0.21
7.25%, 1/15/30 (Series <144A~) 90,000 93,585 0.10
1,331,726 1.41
1.09% (2023 31 : 0.27%)
Altice Financing
5.75%, 8/15/29 (Series <144A~7) 400,000 320,446 0.34
Altice France Holding
10.5%, 5/15/27 (Series <144A7) 325,000 120,301 0.13
Telecom Italia Capita
6.38%, 11/15/33 290,000 273,979 0.29
7.20%, 7/18/36 195,000 190,315 0.20
7.721%, 6/04/38 125,000 125,228 0.13
1,030,269 1.09
2.34% (2023 31 : 1.65%)
Axalta Coating Systems
7.25%, 2/15/31 (Series <144A7)
Constellium NV 295,000 306,644 0.33
5.88%, 2/15/26 (Series <144A~7) 173,000 171,813 0.18
Teva Pharmaceuticals
8.13%, 9/15/31 200,000 219,350 0.23
Trivium Packaging Finance BV
5.50%, 8/15/26 (Series <144A~) 300,000 296,230 0.31
8.50%, 8/15/27 (Series <144A~) 200,000 197,122 0.21
UPC Broadband Finco BV
4.88%, 7/15/31 (Series <144A7) 625,000 557,798 0.59
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()
2.34% (2023 31 : 1.65%)
Ziggo BV
4.88%, 1/15/30 (Series <144A<) 515,000 462,214 0.49
2,211,171 2.34
1.06% (2023 31 : 1.15%)
Carnival Corporation
6.00%, 5/01/29 (Series <144A~) 820,000 808,763 0.86
10.50%, 6/01/30 (Series <144A~) 170,000 185,948 0.20
994,711 1.06
0.95% (2023 31 : 1.26%)
Virgin Media Finance Plc
5.00%, 7/15/30 400,000 338,124 0.36
Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC
4.50%, 8/15/30 (Series <144A7) 640,000 553,991 0.59
892,115 0.95
78.48% (2023 31 : 79.37%)
ABC Supply Co. Incorporated
4.00%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A7) 358,000 335,996 0.36
Advanced Drainage Systems Incorporated
5.00%, 9/30/27 (Series <144A7) 363,000 352,144 0.37
6.38%, 6/15/30 (Series <144A7) 307,000 308,628 0.33
Allied Universal
9.75%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A7) 150,000 150,407 0.16
Allied Universal Holdco
7.88%, 2/15/31 (Series <144A~7) 565,000 572,371 0.61
AMC Networks Incorporated
10.25%, 1/15/29 (Series <144A7) 225,000 226,406 0.24
AmeriGas Partners LP/AmeriGas Finance Corporation
5.50%, 5/20/25 329,000 329,280 0.35
5.88%, 8/20/26 413,000 412,368 0.44
9.38%, 6/01/28 (Series <144A~) 190,000 196,728 0.21
Antero Midstream Partners LP/Antero Midstream Finance
Corporation
5.75%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~) 300,000 295,487 0.31
6.63%, 2/01/32 (Series <144A7) 425,000 427,169 0.45
Aramark Services Incorporated
5.00%, 2/01/28 (Series <144A7) 275,000 265,343 0.28
Asbury Automotive Group
4.63%, 11/15/29 (Series <144A<) 360,000 332,238 0.35
4.75%, 3/01/30 85,000 78,295 0.08
5.00%, 2/15/32 (Series <144A~7) 205,000 185,720 0.20
Ashton Woods USA LLC/Ashton Woods Finance Company
6.63%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~7) 572,000 573,851 0.61
4.63%, 8/01/29 (Series <144A7) 147,000 135,641 0.15
4.63%, 4/01/30 (Series <144A7) 111,000 101,445 0.11
AssuredPartners Incorporated
5.63%, 1/15/29 (Series <144A~) 695,000 640,196 0.68
7.50%, 2/15/32 (Series <144A~) 260,000 255,469 0.27
ATl Incorporated
5.88%, 12/01/27 255,000 251,233 0.27
4.88%, 10/01/29 270,000 254,188 0.27
7.25%, 8/15/30 95,000 98,206 0.10
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()
78.48% (2023 31 : 79.37%)

Avantor Funding Incorporated

4.63%, 7/15/28 (Series <144A7) 803,000 760,812 0.81
Avient Corporation

7.13%, 8/01/30 (Series <144A~) 501,000 515,168 0.55
B&G Foods Incorporated

5.25%, 9/15/27 295,000 275,709 0.29

8.00%, 9/15/28 (Series <144A~) 205,000 213,465 0.23
Block Incorporated

2.75%, 6/01/26 300,000 282,034 0.30

3.50%, 6/01/31 260,000 226,564 0.24
Boyd Gaming Corporation

4.75%, 12/01/27 160,000 154,514 0.16

4.75%, 6/15/31 (Series <144A7) 230,000 211,401 0.22
Buckeye Partners LP

4.13%, 3/01/25 (Series <144A7) 260,000 254,107 0.27

3.95%, 1/12/26 343,000 327,994 0.35

4.13%, 1/12/27 205,000 192,939 0.20

4.50%, 3/01/28 (Series <144A7) 265,000 251,672 0.27

5.60%, 10/15/44 176,000 140,549 0.15
Builders FirstSource Incorporated

5.00%, 3/01/30 (Series <144A~) 725,000 692,784 0.74

4.25%, 2/01/32 (Series <144A<) 5,000 4,485 0.00
Caesars Entertainment Incorporated

4.63%, 10/15/29 (Series “144A~) 335,000 305,430 0.32

6.50%, 2/15/32 (Series <144A~) 200,000 201,863 0.21
CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corporation

4.50%, 8/15/30 (Series <144A7) 310,000 260,882 0.28

4.25%, 2/01/31 (Series <144A7) 1,300,000 1,062,190 1.13

7.38%, 3/01/31 (Series <144A~7) 250,000 245,226 0.26

4.25%, 1/15/34 (Series <144A7) 675,000 510,035 0.54
Century Communities

3.88%, 8/15/29 (Series <144A~) 705,000 634,821 0.67
CHS/Community Health Systems Incorporated

5.25%, 5/15/30 (Series <144A~) 10,000 8,155 0.01

4.75%, 2/15/31 (Series <144A7) 650,000 502,178 0.53
Cinemark USA Incorporated

5.25%, 7/15/28 (Series <144A~) 375,000 354,987 0.38
Clarios International Inc

6.75%, 5/15/28 (Series <144A~) 365,000 370,009 0.39
Clean Harbors Incorporated

4.88%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A<) 106,000 102,825 0.11

6.38%, 2/01/31 (Series <144A~) 40,000 40,290 0.04
Clear Channel Outdoor

9.00%, 9/15/28 (Series <144A~7) 735,000 766,190 0.81

7.50%, 6/01/29 (Series <144A7) 175,000 144,776 0.15

7.88%, 4/01/30 (Series <144A~7) 95,000 94,458 0.10
Clearway Energy

3.75%, 1/15/32 (Series <144A~) 85,000 71,428 0.08
Clearway Energy Operating LLC

4.75%, 3/15/28 (Series < 144A7) 130,000 123,582 0.13

3.75%, 2/15/31 (Series < 144A~) 750,000 643,615 0.68
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()
78.48% (2023 31 : 79.37%)

Clydesdale Acquisition

6.63%, 4/15/29 (Series <144A~) 530,000 530,241 0.56

8.75%, 4/15/30 (Series <144A~) 350,000 344,133 0.37
Colt Merger Sub Incorporated

8.13%, 7/01/27 (Series <144A7) 400,000 409,713 0.43
Condor Merger Sub Incorporated

7.38%, 2/15/30 (Series <144A7) 1,470,000 1,345,588 1.43
Credit Acceptance Corporation

6.63%, 3/15/26 210,000 209,857 0.22

9.25%, 12/15/28 (Series <144A7) 235,000 252,897 0.27
Crocs Incorporated CSC

4.25%, 3/15/29 (Series <144A7) 259,000 236,554 0.25

4.13%, 8/15/31 (Series <144A7) 238,000 206,210 0.22
Holdings LLC

11.75%, 1/31/29 (Series <144A~) 875,000 876,236 0.93

45.75%, 1/15/30 (Series “144A7) 1,010,000 534,700 0.57
Darling Ingredients Incorporated

6.00%, 6/15/30 (Series <144A~) 350,000 346,918 0.37
Dish DBS Corp

5.75%, 12/01/28 (Series <144A7) 200,000 137,488 0.15
DT Midstream Incorporated

4.13%, 6/15/29 (Series <144A<) 750,000 689,503 0.73
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation

5.00%, 12/15/29 (Series <144A<) 849,000 784,199 0.83
Earthstone Energy

8.00%, 4/15/27 (Series <144A7) 560,000 576,798 0.61
Emerald Debt Merger Sub LLC

6.63%, 12/15/30 (Series <144A7) 495,000 499,899 0.53
Endure Digital Incorporated

6.00%, 2/15/29 (Series <144A~) 947,000 741,993 0.79
Energizer Holdings Incorporated

6.50%, 12/31/27 (Series <144A7) 280,000 278,495 0.30
EnLink Midstream LLC/Partners

5.63%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~) 673,000 666,279 0.71

5.38%, 6/01/29 175,000 171,719 0.18

6.50%, 9/01/30 (Series <144A~) 15,000 15,427 0.02

5.05%, 4/01/45 - - -
Entegris Escrow Corporation

4.75%, 4/15/29 (Series <144A<) 645,000 617,671 0.66
EQM Midstream Partners LP

7.50%, 6/01/27 (Series <144A7) 30,000 30,750 0.03

6.50%, 7/01/27 (Series <144A7) 185,000 186,624 0.20

4.50%, 1/15/29 (Series <144A<) 391,000 366,558 0.39

7.50%, 6/01/30 (Series <144A~7) 30,000 32,078 0.03

4.75%, 1/15/31 (Series <144A7) 165,000 153,402 0.16

6.50%, 7/15/48 225,000 225,600 0.24
Fair lIsaac Corporation

4.00%, 6/15/28 (Series <144A7) 352,000 328,908 0.35

99/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

()
78.48% (2023 31 : 79.37%)

Freedom Mortgage Corporation

7.63%, 5/01/26 (Series <144A7) 195,000 194,681 0.21

12.00%, 10/01/28 (Series <144A7) 175,000 190,753 0.20

9.25%, 2/01/29 (Series <144A7) 40,000 40,940 0.04

12.25%, 10/01/30 (Series <144A7) 125,000 137,453 0.15
Frontier Communications Corporation

5.88%, 10/15/27 (Series <144A<) 430,000 416,259 0.44

5.00%, 5/01/28 (Series <144A~) 505,000 468,775 0.50

6.75%, 5/01/29 (Series <144A7) 355,000 316,491 0.34

5.88%, 11/01/29 63,933 54,023 0.06
Gen Digital Incorporated

6.75%, 9/30/27 (Series <144A7) 375,000 380,363 0.40

7.13%, 9/30/30 (Series <144A7) 375,000 385,317 0.41
Genworth Mortgage Holdings Incorporated

6.50%, 8/15/25 (Series <144A7) 730,000 729,854 0.77
Global Payments Incorporated

1.50%, 3/01/31 (Series <144A7) 186,000 196,604 0.21
Go Daddy Opco Finco

3.50%, 3/01/29 (Series <144A7) 775,000 699,122 0.74
Graphic Packaging

3.75%, 2/01/30 (Series <144A7) 250,000 222,331 0.24
GTCR W-2 Merger Sub LLC

7.50%, 1/15/31 (Series <144A7) 465,000 487,007 0.52
Herc Holdings Incorporated

5.50%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A7) 640,000 628,538 0.67
Hub International Ltd

7.25%, 6/15/30 (Series <144A7) 650,000 668,214 0.71

7.38%, 1/31/32 (Series <144A7) 470,000 473,165 0.50
li-Vi Incorporated

5.00%, 12/15/29 (Series “144A7) 400,000 376,560 0.40
Imola Merger Corporation

4.75%, 5/15/29 (Series “144A7) 770,000 722,094 0.77
Insulet Corporation

0.38%, 9/01/26 235,000 244,886 0.26
1QVIA Incorporated

5.00%, 5/15/27 (Series <144A7) 200,000 195,284 0.21
Iron Mountain Incorporated

7.00%, 2/15/29 (Series <144A7) 475,000 483,862 0.51

5.25%, 7/15/30 (Series <144A7) 275,000 260,145 0.28
JetBlue Airways Corporation

0.50%, 4/01/26 275,000 240,314 0.26
KB Home

4.80%, 11/15/29 295,000 281,193 0.30

4.00%, 6/15/31 190,000 168,472 0.18
Lamar Media Corporation

3.75%, 2/15/28 400,000 373,783 0.40
LBM Acquisition LLC

6.25%, 1/15/29 (Series <144A7) 1,070,000 1,003,004 1.06
M/1 Homes Incorporated

4.95%, 2/01/28 510,000 486,461 0.52

3.95%, 2/15/30 205,000 184,475 0.20
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Magic Merge Co Incorporated

5.25%, 5/01/28 (Series <144A7) 890,000 758,674 0.80
Matador Resources Company

6.88%, 4/15/28 (Series <144A7) 445,000 455,274 0.48

6.50%, 4/15/32 (Series <144A7) 30,000 30,087 0.03
Mauser Packaging/Sol

7.88%, 8/15/26 (Series <144A7) 230,000 234,356 0.25

9.25%, 4/15/27 (Series “144A7) 350,000 347,035 0.37
MGIC Investment Corporation

5.25%, 8/15/28 650,000 631,891 0.67
Middleby Corporation

1.00%, 9/01/25 128,000 168,143 0.18
Minerva Merger Sub Incorporated

6.50%, 2/15/30 (Series <144A7) 945,000 864,753 0.92
Mozart Debt Merger

3.88%, 4/01/29 (Series <144A7) 1,323,000 1,205,533 1.28

5.25%, 10/01/29 (Series “144A~) 438,000 413,913 0.44
MSCI Incorporated

3.63%, 9/01/30 (Series <144A7) 340,000 301,637 0.32

3.88%, 2/15/31 (Series <144A7) 95,000 84,758 0.09
Nabors Industries Incorporated

9.13%, 1/31/30 (Series <144A7) 320,000 332,691 0.35
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Incorporated

5.50%, 8/15/28 (Series <144A7) 35,000 33,507 0.04

5.13%, 12/15/30 (Series <144A<) 540,000 489,963 0.52

7.13%, 2/1/32 (Series <144A7) 120,000 119,112 0.13
Newfold Digital Holdings

11.75%, 10/15/28 (Series <144A7) 110,000 119,082 0.13
Noble Finance Il LLC

8.00%, 4/15/30 (Series <144A7) 674,000 702,396 0.74
Northern Oil & Gas Incorporated

3.63%, 4/15/29 (Series < 144A7) 150,000 182,519 0.19

8.75%, 6/15/31 250,000 264,049 0.28
Novelis Corporation

3.25%, 11/15/26 (Series “144A~) 155,000 144,425 0.15

4.75%, 1/30/30 (Series <144A<) 615,000 567,691 0.60

3.88%, 8/15/31 (Series <144A7) 160,000 137,457 0.15
Olympus WTR US Holdings

9.75%, 11/15/28 (Series “144A<) 650,000 692,375 0.73
ON Semiconductor Corp

0.50%, 3/01/29 300,000 295,839 0.31
OneMain Finance Corporation

9.00%, 1/15/29 217,000 230,211 0.24

5.38%, 11/15/29 305,000 286,756 0.30

7.88%, 3/15/30 165,000 170,174 0.18
Owens-Brockway Glass Container Incorporated

7.25%, 5/15/31 (Series < 144A7) 395,000 402,275 0.43
PennyMac Financial Services Incorporated

5.38%, 10/15/25 (Series “144A~) 555,000 548,637 0.58
Performance Food Group Incorporated

5.50%, 10/15/27 (Series “144A~) 665,000 652,539 0.69
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PetSmart Incorporated/PetSmart Finance Corporation

4.75%, 2/15/28 (Series <144A<) 1,050,000 983,008 1.03
Post Holdings Incorporated

5.63%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~) 481,000 472,388 0.50
Presidio Holdings Incorporated

4.88%, 2/01/27 (Series <144A7) 233,000 225,994 0.24

8.25%, 2/01/28 (Series <144A~7) 360,000 358,641 0.38
Prestige Brands Incorporated

5.13%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A~) 275,000 267,882 0.28
Range Resources Corporation

4.88%, 5/15/25 70,000 69,474 0.07

4.75%, 2/15/30 (Series < 144A~) 191,000 178,101 0.19
Rexford Industrial

4.38%, 3/15/27 (Series “144A7) 125,000 126,563 0.13

4.13%, 3/15/29 (Series “144A~) 125,000 126,480 0.13
RHP Hotel Properties LP

7.25%, 7/15/28 (Series <144A7) 490,000 504,609 0.54

6.50%, 4/01/32 (Series <144A7) 70,000 70,259 0.07
Roblox Corporation

3.88%, 5/01/30 (Series <144A7) 720,000 634,401 0.67
Scripps Escrow Incorporated

5.88%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A~) 815,000 681,950 0.72
Service Corporation International

4.63%, 12/15/27 50,000 48,331 0.05

3.38%, 8/15/30 450,000 389,482 0.41
Sirius XM Radio Incorporated

3.13%, 9/01/26 (Series <144A7) 310,000 290,460 0.31

4.13%, 7/01/30 (Series <144A~) 250,000 218,525 0.23
SM Energy Corporation

6.75%, 9/15/26 305,000 305,282 0.32

6.50%, 7/15/28 160,000 160,670 0.17
Specialty Building Products Holdings LLC/SBP
Finance Corporation

6.38%, 9/30/26 (Series <144A7) 549,000 545,093 0.58
Speedway Motorsports LLC/Speedway Funding Il Incorporated

4.88%, 11/01/27 (Series “144A~) 649,000 617,851 0.66
Spirit Aerosystems Incorporated

9.38%, 11/30/29 (Series <144A~) 670,000 730,831 0.78
Springleaf Finance Corporation

7.13%, 3/15/26 490,000 499,161 0.53
SRS Distribution Incorporated

4.63%, 7/01/28 (Series <144A7) 360,000 362,678 0.38
Standard Industries Incorporated

4.38%, 7/15/30 (Series < 144A~) 275,000 247,136 0.26
Station Casinos LLC

6.63%, 3/15/32 (Series <144A7) 485,000 490,060 0.52
STL Holding Company LLC

7.50%, 2/15/26 (Series <144A7) 400,000 410,516 0.44
Sugarhouse HSP Gaming Prop Mezz LP

5.88%, 5/15/25 (Series < 144A7) 335,000 334,071 0.35
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Surgery Center Holdings (Series “144A7)
7.25%, 4/15/32 200,000 201,670 0.21
Taylor Morrison Communities Incorporated
5.75%, 1/15/28 (Series <144A7) 530,000 526,615 0.56
5.13%, 8/01/30 (Series <144A~) 195,000 186,230 0.20
Tenet Healthcare Corporation
6.13%, 6/15/30 700,000 698,384 0.74
TransDigm Incorporated
5.50%, 11/15/27 770,000 753,982 0.80
6.75%, 8/15/28 (Series <144A~7) 185,000 187,663 0.20
6.63%, 3/01/32 (Series <144A~7) 180,000 181,917 0.19
Trinet Group Incorporated
7.13%, 8/15/31 (Series <144A~7) 475,000 487,454 0.52
Uber Technologies Incorporated
8.00%, 11/01/26 (Series <144A7) 300,000 303,614 0.32
0.88%, 12/01/28 (Series <144A7) 185,000 229,215 0.24
4.50%, 8/15/29 (Series <144A7) 962,000 912,631 0.97
UKG Incorporated
6.88%, 2/01/31 (Series <144A~) 900,000 916,862 0.97
United Rentals North America Incorporated
4.88%, 1/15/28 345,000 335,775 0.36
3.88%, 2/15/31 185,000 165,765 0.18
3.75%, 1/15/32 65,000 56,753 0.06
USA Company Partners
6.88%, 9/01/27 (Series <144A7) 350,000 354,711 0.38
Vertical US Newco Incorporated
5.25%, 7/15/27 (Series <144A~) 350,000 338,223 0.36
Vital Energy Incorporated
7.75%, 7/31/29 (Series <144A7) 75,000 75,620 0.08
9.75%, 10/15/30 625,000 683,391 0.72
7.88%, 4/15/32 (Series <144A~7) 25,000 25,422 0.03
Welltower OP LLC
2.75%, 5/15/28 (Series <144A~) 230,000 256,427 0.27
Williams Scotsman International
4.63%, 8/15/28 (Series <144A7) 591,000 559,068 0.59
Windsor Holdings 111 LLC
8.50%, 6/15/30 (Series <144A~) 475,000 497,929 0.53
Wynn Las Vegas LLC/Wynn Las Vegas Capital Corporation
5.25%, 5/15/27 (Series <144A7) 220,000 215,759 0.23
7.13%, 2/15/31 (Series <144A7) 760,000 786,570 0.83
Xerox Holdings Corporation
5.00%, 8/15/25 (Series <144A~) 11,000 10,851 0.01
Yum! Brands Incorporated
3.63%, 3/15/31 145,000 128,357 0.14
4.63%, 1/31/32 209,000 192,928 0.20
5.38%, 4/01/32 281,000 272,199 0.29
73,992,441 78.48

103/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

()
0.79% (2023 31 : 3.92%)
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 5.31%, 4/01/24
2.625% 2027 31 798,000
748,000 748,000 0.79
748,000 0.79
93,072,881 98.71
11,040 0.01
1,203,023 1.28
94,286,944 100.00

Series “144A~
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Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Statement of Financia Position

Asa Asat
Notes 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Uss US$
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2 93,072,881 97,123,221
Cash 3 11,040 49,905
Receivable for investments sold 1,168,673 279,426
Interest receivable 2 1,540,049 1,355,016
Receivable for Fund Units sold - 580
Total Current Assets 95,792,643 98,808,148
Equity
Unit capital 15,459,820 16,595,220
Unit premium 459,934,506 465,542,590
Retained deficit (381,107,382) (384,534,540)
Total Equity
(for Financial Reporting Purposes) 11 94,286,944 97,603,270
Current Liabilities (amounts falling due within one year)
Dividends payable 8 373,032 373,534
Interest payable 74 -
Fees payable 4 450,908 482,159
Payable for Fund Units repurchased 120,160 62,506
Payable for investments purchased 561,525 286,679
Total Current Liabilities 1,505,699 1,204,878
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 05,792,643 98,808,148
Number of Unitsin Issue
(for Financial Reporting Purposes) 7 15,459,820 16,595,220
Net Asset Vaue per Unit 15 6.10 5.88

Signed on behalf of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Peter Callaghan
Date: 11 July 2024

Keiji Nakamura

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
US$ US$
Income
Interest income 6,464,699 6,328,355
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 2 3,360,519 (10,453,118)
Total Net Income/(Loss) 9,825,218 (4,124,763)
Expenses
Distribution fees 5,13 571,745 613,128
Investment Manager fees 513 571,745 613,128
AIFM fees 5,13 142,944 153,240
Depositary fees 5,13 47,572 51,080
Agent Securities Company fees 513 47,572 51,080
Audit fees 49,947 39,880
Negative yield expense 49 628
Other fees and expenses 9 163,216 240,216
Total Operating Expenses 1,594,790 1,762,380
Net Operating profit/(loss) before Tax 8,230,428 (5,887,143)
Withholding Tax - (4,524)
Net Operating profit/(loss) 8,230,428 (5,891,667)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 8,230,428 (5,891,667)

Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Unit Unit Retained
Capital Premium Deficit Total
Uss$ USs$ Uss US$
Asat 1st April, 2023 16,595,220 465,542,590 (384,534,540) 97,603,270
Total comprehensive income - - 8,230,428 8,230,428
Distributions (Note 8) - - (4,803,270) (4,803,270)
Issue of Units 162,180 786,897 - 949,077
Repurchase of Units (1,297,580) (6,408,550) - (7,706,130)
Movement in Equalisation - 13,569 - 13,569
Asat 31st March, 2024 15,459,820 459,934,506 (381,107,382) 94,286,944
Asat 1st April, 2022 18,583,420 475,415,331 (374,103,672) 119,895,079
Total comprehensive loss - - (5,891,667) (5,891,667)
Distributions (Note 8) - - (4,539,201) (4,539,201)
Issue of Units 222,290 1,096,930 - 1,319,220
Repurchase of Units (2,210,490)  (10,948,527) - (13,159,017)
Movement in Equalisation - (21,144) - (21,144)
Asat 31st March, 2023 16,595,220 465,542,590 (384,534,540) 97,603,270

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund (the “Fund”) was constituted as an Irish domiciled Fund, by a
Trust Deed dated 3rd February, 1998. The Fund is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the
“Central Bank™) as an open-ended unit trust scheme under the provisions of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990
(the “Act”). The Fund was approved by the Central Bank as a Retail Investor Alternative Investment
Fund on 30th December, 2015. The Fund's primary objective isto provide investors with ahigh

level of current income while undertaking a moderate level of risk.

Effective 22nd July, 2014, SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the Alternative Investment Fund
Manager, the “AIFM”) registered under the EU Alternative Investment Fund Manager's Directive
(the“*AIFMD™). One of the main objectives of the AIFMD isto increase transparency around the
activities of the AIFM and their AlFs.

On 24th February 2022, Russia launched amilitary invasion into Ukraine. Russia’'s invasion of
Ukraine carries significant risks for aworld economy that has yet to fully recover from the impacts of
the global Covid-19 pandemic. The ultimate impacts on the Fund of the consequential geo-political
instability, financial market volatility, inflation and imposition of sanctions on Russia, and of an
environment of rising interest rates, are not possible to forecast at thistime.

On 23rd December 2022, an addendum to the Prospectus was issued to clarify that the Fund does not
consider the adverse impacts of itsinvestment decisions on sustainability factors in the manner
contemplated by Article 4(1)(a) of The Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (“SFDR”) asthe
Fund falls under Article 6 of SFDR and does not have as its objective sustainable investment, nor
does it promote Environmental, Social and Governance (*ESG”) characteristics.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted by the Fund are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
Ireland” (“FRS 102"), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and Irish statute
comprising the Act.

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained

in FRS 102 so that, in the opinion of the AIFM, they more appropriately reflect the nature of the Fund
's business as an investment fund.
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements
(Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Preparation (Continued)
The Fund has availed of the exemption available to certain open-ended investment funds under FRS
102 not to prepare a cash flow statement.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The
AIFM believes that the estimates utilised in financial statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

Thefinancia statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historic cost convention as adjusted for the
revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. Securities are valued using the
latest traded price or if thisis not available, the bid price quoted for such security on 28th March,
2024, which was the last Business Day of the year.

Accounting for Investments
Investment transactions are recorded on atrade date basis. Realised gains and |osses on sales of
investments are calculated on a“first in - first out” (“FIFO”) basis.

Valuation of Investments

Oninitial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments a reporting entity is
required to apply either @) the full requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments
and Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and measurement provisions of International
Accounting Standards (“lAS”) 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and only the disclosure
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or
c) the recognition and measurement provisions of International Financial Reporting Standard
(“IFRS") 9 Financial Instruments and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic
Financia Instruments and Other Financial Instruments. The Fund has chosen to implement b) the
recognition and measurement provision of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and only the
disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financia Instruments and Other Financial

I nstruments.
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements
(Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Valuation of Investments (Continued)

In accordance with FRS 102 the Fund has classified all its investments as financial assets or liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Investments areinitially recognised at the fair value of
the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recognised directly in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair value at the
year end. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date — the date on which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Listed Securities

The fair value of financial instruments/securities listed on a recognised stock exchange or traded on
any other organised market is based on quoted market prices at the year end date. The quoted market
price used for assets held by the Fund is the current bid price at the year end of such stock exchange
or market which constitutes the principal market for such securities.

Unlisted Securities

Securities not listed on any stock exchange or traded on any regulated market and securities for which
the priceisin the opinion of the AIFM (or its delegate) not representative of the fair value, will be
valued with care and in good faith by the AIFM (or its delegate) on the basis of their probable
realisation value, provided the AIFM (or its delegate), has been approved for this purpose by the
Depositary. As at the year end, there were no investments priced in this manner.

Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements are valued at cost and adjusted for any movements in foreign exchange rates.
Interest rates vary for each repurchase agreement and are set at the initiation of the agreement. It is
the Fund's policy to take custody of securitiesto protect the Fund in the event the securities are not
repurchased by the counterparty.

The Fund will generally obtain additional collateral if the fair value of the underlying securitiesisless
than the face value of the repurchase agreement plus any accrued interest. The Fund has the right to
repledge, hypothecate, sell or transfer this collateral but as at the year end, the collateral held for the
repurchase agreement was neither repledged, hypothecated, sold nor transferred. In the event of
default on the obligation to repurchase, the Fund has the right to liquidate the collateral and apply the
proceeds in satisfaction of the obligation. In the event of default or bankruptcy by the counterparty to
the agreement, realisation and/or retention of the collateral or proceeds may be subject to legal
proceedings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)

Cash and Other Liquid Assets

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cash and other liquid assets will be valued at their face value with interest accrued, where applicable,
to the valuation point on the relevant Dealing Day unless, in the opinion of the AIFM (in consultation
with the Administrator) any adjustment should be made to reflect the true value thereof. SMT
Trustees (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited (London Branch) (the “Custodian”) as its Custodian. The Custodian has, in turn,
appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH”) as their global sub-custodian. Both the cash and
assets are ultimately held at BBH, with cash being held at BBH as Banker. The cash is swept on a
nightly basisto pre-approved financial institutions and returned the day after.

Realised Gains and Losses on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through

Profit or Loss

Realised gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are calculated based on FIFO book cost. The associated foreign exchange movements between
the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets are included in net gain/(loss) on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Net gain/(loss) on financia assets at fair value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange
Realised loss on investments and foreign exchange
Total net realised loss

Increase/(decrease) in unrealised appreciation on
Investments

Decrease in unrealised depreciation on investments
Net (decrease)/increase in unrealised appreciation on
foreign exchange

Total net increase/(decrease) in unrealised
appreciation/(depreciation)

Net gain/(loss) on financia assets at fair vaue
through profit or loss
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31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023

Uss Uss
464,479 1,127,082
(2,176,485) (7,012,523)
(1,712,006) (5,885,441)
6,032,530 (1,673,078)
(959,478) (2,895,291)
(527) 692
5,072,525 (4,567,677)
3,360,519 (10,453,118)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Trandation

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentational currency of the Fund is US Dollar (US$), thisis considered to be
the currency of the primary economic environment of the Fund.

Transactions and Balances

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Fund are
trandlated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the year end date. Transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Fund are trandated into the functional currency
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Gains and |osses on foreign exchange
transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in determining the result for
the year. Proceeds from issuance and amounts paid on repurchase of Units are trandlated at the rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Income Recognition

Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or lossis reported gross of withholding tax.
Dividends are recognised as income on the dates the securities are first quoted “ex-dividend” to the
extent that information thereon is reasonably available to the Fund. Other income is accounted for on
an accruals basis.

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all debt
instruments using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of afinancial asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial
instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability.

Once afinancial asset or agroup of similar financial assets has been written down as aresult of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment |oss.

Transaction Costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair
value. Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
financial period in which they arise.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accrual basis.

Income Equalisation

The Fund maintains an equalisation account with aview to ensuring that the level of distributions
payable on Unitsis not affected by the issue and repurchase of such Units during an accounting
period.

The subscription price of such Unitswill therefore be deemed to include an equalisation payment
calculated by reference to the accrued income of the Fund and the first distribution in respect of any
Unit will include a payment of capital usually equal to the amount of such equalisation payment. The
repurchase price of each Unit will also include an equalisation payment in respect of the accrued
income of the Fund up to the date of repurchase.

Net Asset Vaue Per Unit
The Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated by dividing the Total Equity of the Fund by the number
of Unitsinissue. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportional share of the Fund
's Total Equity. The Unit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payable at the year end date if
the Unitholder exercised the right to put the Unit back in the Fund.

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section
739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The Fund is not chargeable to Irish tax on
itsincome or capital gains. However, Irish tax can arise on the happening of a*“chargeable event”. A
chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Unitholders or any encashment, repurchase,
redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of sharesfor Irish tax
purposes arising as aresult of holding shares in the Company for a period of eight years or more.

113/262



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00D0DO000D00D0O00D0DO000DO0Ono(EL4857)

Do00000000000000000
Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Notes to the Audited Financial Statements
(Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
No tax will arisein respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(i) isan Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes Consolidation Act,
1997, as amended) who has provided the Fund with the necessary signed statutory
declarations; or

(if) isneither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessary signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by
the Fund.

Capital gains and interest received by the Fund may be subject to non-recoverable withholding tax in
the countries of origin.

Dividends Payable and Distributions

Proposed distributions to Holders of Units are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity when
the Fund incurs alegal or constructive obligation to pay such adistribution (i.e. at the “ ex-date”).
Distributions are declared as at the valuation point on the last Business Day of each month (the “ex-
date”) and are paid on or before the fourth Business Day following the ex-date to all Unitholders
entered on the register at the close of business on the Business Day preceding the ex-date and thus
applicants for Units on the ex-date will not be entitled to the distribution paid on that date but
Unitholders seeking repurchase of all or part of their Units on the ex-date will receive the distribution
paid on that date.

The AIFM distributes to the Unitholders monthly all net interest, dividends and other income
received by the Fund subject to such adjustments as may be appropriate pursuant to the provisions of
the Trust Deed. The AIFM may aso distribute to the Unitholders monthly or at such other times asit
may determine, the realised and unrealised capital gains less realised and unrealised capital 0sses of
the Fund, but has not done so to date. All income and net capital gains of the Fund which are not
distributed are invested pursuant to the Fund' s investment policy.
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CASH

Cash balances at the year end date were held by the below institutions. There was no cash collateral
or restricted cash held at year end. The Fund, through its Custodian, places excess cash balancesinto
overnight deposits with one or more eligible depository institutions.

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

US$ USs$
Citibank, New Y ork (held through cash sweep) 117 39,550
JPM Chase, New York (held through cash sweep) 10,923 10,355
11,040 49,905

FEES PAYABLE
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
US$ USs
Distribution fees (Note 13) 141,815 145,585
Investment Manager fees (Note 13) 141,815 145,585
AIFM fees (Note 13) 35,392 36,327
Depositary fees (Note 13) 11,721 12,109
Audit fees 47,599 44,826
Agent Securities Company fees (Note 13) 11,721 12,109
Other fees and expenses 60,845 85,618
450,908 482,159

FEES

Distribution fees of 0.60% of the average daily Net Assets of the Fund during the relevant quarter are
payable to the Distributors on a per Unit basis. For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the distribution
feeincurred was US$571,745 (2023: US$613,128) of which US$141,815 was outstanding at year end
(2023: US$145,585).

The Fund pays to the Investment Manager an annual fee of 0.60% of the first US$500 million, 0.55%
of the next US$500 million and 0.50% of the balance of the average daily Net Assets of the Fund
during the relevant quarter. Thisfeeis payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on adaily basis.
For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Investment Manager earned afee of US$571,745 (2023:
US$613,128) of which US$141,815 was outstanding at year end (2023: US$145,585).
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5. FEES (Continued)

The Fund paysto the AIFM an annual fee of 0.15% of the average daily Net Assets of the Fund
during the relevant quarter. Thisfeeis payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on adaily basis.
For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the AIFM earned a fee of US$142,944 (2023: US$153,240) of
which US$35,392 was outstanding at year end (2023: US$36,327).

The Depositary receives from the Fund an annual fee of 0.05% of the average daily Net Assets of the
Fund. Thisfeeis payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on adaily basis. For the year ended 31st
March, 2024, the Depositary earned afee of US$47,572 (2023: US$51,080) of which US$11,721 was
outstanding at year end (2023: US$12,109).

The Agent Securities Company in Japan is entitled to an annual fee which is payable out of the assets
of the Fund at the end of each calendar quarter, at an annual rate of 0.05% of the average daily Net
Assets of the Fund for the relevant quarter. Any reasonable disbursements and out-of -pocket
expenses incurred by the Agent Securities Company for client services carried out on behalf of the
Fund will be borne by the Fund. For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Agent Securities Company
earned a fee of US$47,572 (2023: US$51,080) of which US$11,721 was outstanding at year end
(2023: US$12,109).

6. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

During the years ended 31st March, 2024 and 2023, the Fund paid for no soft dollar commissions
attributable to execution and research.

7. UNITSISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE YEAR

Units are offered at the subscription price equal to the current Net Asset Value per Unit plus asales
charge of up to 3% of such price payable to or at the direction of the relevant Distributor. The
minimum subscription isten Units and integral multiples of ten Units, and no fractional Units are
issued.

Applications for the purchase of Units must be received by the AIFM at its business address prior to
10.00 am. (Dublin time) on each Dealing Day. Units will be issued by the AIFM provided payment
Is made to the Depositary on or before the fourth Business Day following the Dealing Day on which
the request for purchase is accepted by the AIFM. Any loss, cost or expense suffered by the Fund asa
result of any failure to pay or late payment of subscription monies shall be borne by the applicant.
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7. UNITSISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Unitholders will be entitled to have their Units repurchased on each Dealing Day. Repurchase will be
effected at a price per Unit equal to the Net Asset Value per Unit prevailing on the date of
repurchase, provided that the AIFM may delay payment of repurchase proceeds (up to a maximum of
30 days from the relevant Dealing Day) if the period of settlement of the sale or other realisation of
Securities, necessary to fund the repurchase, is delayed or any necessary conversion or transfer of
funds is delayed for any reason beyond the control of the AIFM. There will be no repurchase charge.
Subject to the foregoing, the proceeds of a repurchase will be paid in cash on or before the fourth
Business Day following the date on which such repurchase is effected. Unitholders wishing to have
their Units repurchased must submit a redemption form to the AIFM at its business address to be
received on the Dealing Day on which repurchase is requested.

To request aredemption of Units, the Unitholder may obtain from and submit to the AIFM a
Subscription and Redemption Order Form (atrade order for submitting Subscriptions and
Redemptionsin aform to be agreed by the AIFM) instead of a Redemption Form. All requests for
repurchase shall be made prior to 10:00 am. Dublin time on the relevant Dealing Day. Requests for
repurchases received after such time may at the discretion of the AIFM be rejected. All applications
for repurchase shall be irrevocable except with the prior consent of the AIFM (such consent to be at

the AIFM’s absolute discretion).

Number of Units outstanding at beginning of year
Number of Unitsissued
Number of Units repurchased

Number of Units outstanding a end of year (for
Unitholder Dealing Purposes)

Trade Date Adjustment (Note 11)

Number of Units outstanding a end of year (for
Financial Reporting Purposes)
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31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

16,595,220 18,583,420
162,180 222,290
(1,279,880) (2,204,190)
15,477,520 16,601,520
(17,700) (6,300)
15,459,820 16,595,220
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions declared during the year ended31st March, 2024 were as follows:

DIVIDEND AMOUNT

PER UNIT PAID

EX-DATE USs$ USs
27th April, 2023 0.0225 371,528
30th May, 2023 0.0249 409,380
29th June, 2023 0.0239 389,969
28th July, 2023 0.0238 384,805
30th August, 2023 0.0258 415,173
28th September, 2023 0.0241 385,535
27th October, 2023 0.0270 429,295
29th November, 2023 0.0254 402,093
28th December, 2023 0.0237 372,669
30th January, 2024 0.0275 429,779
28th February, 2024 0.0283 440,012
27th March, 2024* 0.0241 373,032
Total 4,803,270

*Payable as at 31st March, 2024
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

Distributions declared during the year ended31st March, 2023 were as follows:

DIVIDEND AMOUNT

PER UNIT PAID

EX-DATE Uss Uss
27th April, 2022 0.0200 361,260
27th May, 2022 0.0220 394,889
29th June, 2022 0.0220 388,896
28th July, 2022 0.0204 356,461
30th August, 2022 0.0223 387,489
29th September, 2022 0.0223 381,904
27th October, 2022 0.0196 331,343
29th November, 2022 0.0249 418,260
29th December, 2022 0.0216 360,862
30th January, 2023 0.0234 392,244
27th February, 2023 0.0235 392,059
30th March, 2023* 0.0225 373,534
Total 4,539,201

*Payable as at 31st March, 2023
9. OTHER FEESAND EXPENSES

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

US$ US$
Legal fees 10,717 77,608
Printing expenses 29,835 51,357
Professional expenses 49,947 39,880
Miscellaneous fees and expenses 72,717 71,371

163,216 240,216
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS

The main risks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk (including price risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

(8) Market Risk

Market risk isthe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinancial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. It represents the potential loss the Fund might suffer through
holding market positions in the face of price movements. Market risk includes price risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk.

All financial instruments are subject to market risk. All financial instruments of the Fund are
recognised at fair value through profit or loss and al changes in market conditions directly affect net
income. The Fund manages its use of financial instruments in response to changing market
conditions. The Fund's strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by itsinvestment
objective. The Fund's investment objective isto provide investors with ahigh level of current
income, while undertaking a moderate level of risk, while the secondary investment objective isto
seek capital appreciation, as more fully described in the Prospectus. There can be no assurance that
the Fund will achieve its investment objectives.

The Fund invests in adiversified portfolio consisting primarily of high yielding, lower rated debt
securities. Performance and risk are monitored and measured, where applicable, by comparing the
portfolio to its market benchmark and/or universe of peers. The market benchmark of the Fund is the
Bloomberg Barclays US Corporate High Yield Index. Exposure to market risk is managed on adaily
basis in accordance with risk management principles set by the Investment Manager by buying or
selling financia instruments. Market risk is monitored by the portfolio managers and investment
teams at the Investment Manager, using avariety of different proprietary and market tools. At the
Investment Manager, the Manager of the Fund are also subject to reviews by different internal groups
and committees.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund' s overall market
price sensitivity on adaily basis.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(@) Market Risk (Continued)

31st March, 31st March,
Quality Ratings 2024* 2023*
Cash 0.01% 0.05%
Investment Grade 4.41% 3.58%
BB+ 3.11% 10.81%
BB 13.48% 12.39%
BB- 25.53% 25.31%
B+ 16.40% 14.00%
B 13.12% 14.25%
B- 11.01% 12.12%
CCC+ and below 11.65% 6.68%
Not Rated 1.28% 0.81%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

*The Fund' s exposure to BBB- credit rating and above (Investment Grade) was 4.41% of the
portfolio as at 31st March, 2024 (2023: 3.58%). Quality ratings for the account are based on the
median of Moody’s, S& P Global Ratings and Fitch’s quality rating. If only two agencies rate a
security, the lower rating is used. If only one agency rates a security, that agency’s rating is used.

(i) Price Risk

Pricerisk istherisk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinancia instrument will fluctuate as
aresult of changes in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment,
itsissuer or al factors affecting al instruments traded in the market. Asthe Fund's financial
instruments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, al changes in market conditions will directly affect net loss.

The Investment Manager strives to achieve diversification by limiting individual company and
industry exposure, not taking concentrated idiosyncratic risk, and ensuring the portfolio is well
diversified by issuer, industry & sector. The Fund on average isinvested in higher quality companies
than that of the benchmark and hence has less price risk and lower beta than the market.

If prices of securities at 31st March, 2024 had increased by 5%, with al other variables remaining
constant, this would have increased Total Equity of the Fund by approximately US$4,653,644 (2023:
US$4,856,161). Conversely, if prices had decreased by 5%, this would have resulted in an equal but
opposite effect on Equity, on the basisthat al other variables remain constant.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(@) Market Risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk represents the potential losses that the Fund might suffer due to adverse
movements in non-functional currency exposures. Substantially all of the financial assets of the Fund
are denominated in US$ with the effect that the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of
Comprehensive Income will not be significantly affected by currency movements.

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk isthe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinancial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Thisrisk arises on financial instruments whose
fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates. Generally, the value of debt
securities will change because of changes in market interest rates.

Duration is the most widely used measure of bond price volatility. It isthe weighted average of the
present value of all the cash flows associated with a fixed income security and is expressed in years.
The formula assumes a parallel shift in the yield curve. The higher the duration, the higher the price
sensitivity of the bond to the change in interest rates. Typically, thereisan inverse relationship
between interest rates and the value of fixed rate bonds.

Effective duration is used with bonds that have an embedded option and takes into consideration how
changes in interest rates in the future may alter the cash flows due to the exercise of the option. The
binomial model is used to determine the value of the bond if the yield was to increase or decrease by
a certain amount, and the results of the model are then used to calculate duration. The model assumes
the option adjusted spread of the bond will not change when interest rates change.

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Effective duration 3.18% 3.93%

Effective duration is used as a measure of interest rate sensitivity. The Effective Duration of 3.18%
as of 31st March, 2024 would indicate that for a 1% increase/decrease in interest rates, the Fund may
experience an approximate 3.18% decrease/increase in value.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(@) Market Risk (Continued)
(iii) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

The interest rate profile of the Fund' s financial assets (excluding equities, short term debtors and
creditors) as at 31st March, 2024 and 2023 was.

Tota Floating
(including cash) Rate  Fixed Rate
USs$ USs$ Uss
Asat 31st March, 2024 93,083,921 11,040 93,072,881
Asat 31st March, 2023 97,173,126 1,507,832 95,665,294
Fixed rate financia Fixed rate financia
assets weighted assets weighted
average average period for
interest rate which rateis fixed
% Years
Asat 31st March, 2024 5.99 5.01
Asat 31st March, 2023 5.39 5.46

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust the size of its
investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price. The main
liability of the Fund is the repurchase of any Units that investors may wish to sell.

The Prospectus sets out details of the circumstances in which tools and arrangements, such as
repurchase fees and temporary suspension of trading may be imposed with the approval of the
Directorsin order to manage the liquidity risk of the Fund and to ensure the fair treatment of
Unitholders.

The Fund's assets comprise mainly of readily realisable securities. However, some of the Fund's
financial instruments may include instruments that are traded in over-the-counter markets or which
are not traded in an organised public market. As aresult, the Fund may not be able to quickly
liquidate investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value in order to meet its
liquidity requirements or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the credit worthiness of
any particular issuer.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Unitholders will be entitled to have their Units repurchased on each Dealing Day, which isany day
other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which banks are open for businessin Ireland, Tokyo and New
Y ork. Repurchase will be effected at a price per Unit equal to the Net Asset Vaue per Unit
prevailing on the date of repurchase, provided that the AIFM may delay payment of repurchase
proceeds (up to a maximum of 30 days from the relevant Dealing Day) if the period of settlement of
the sale or other realisation of investment, necessary to fund the repurchase, is delayed or any
necessary conversion or transfer of funds is delayed for any reason beyond the control of the AIFM.

There will be no repurchase charge. Subject to the foregoing, the proceeds of a repurchase will be
paid in cash on or before the fourth Business Day following the date on which such repurchase is
affected. There are no restrictions on repurchases and Unitholders may repurchase daily with no fee.

The tables below analyse the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end date to the contractual maturity date. The amountsin the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances payable in more than one month are due within
twelve months and equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Lessthan More than

Asat 31st March, 2024 1 month 1 month Tota

USs$ Uss USss$
Dividends payable 373,032 - 373,032
Interest payable 74 - 74
Fees payable - 450,908 450,908
Payable for Fund Units repurchased 120,160 - 120,160
Payable for investments purchased 561,525 - 561,525
Tota financid liabilities 1,054,791 450,908 1,505,699
Asat 31st March, 2023

Uss uss USs$
Dividends payable 373,534 - 373,534
Fees payable - 482,159 482,159
Payable for Fund Units repurchased 62,506 - 62,506
Payable for investments purchased 286,679 - 286,679
Total financia liabilities 722,719 482,159 1,204,878

Units are repurchased at the option of Unitholders.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(c) Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk that one party to a financial instrument or transaction will cause afinancial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Thisis also referred to as counterparty risk or
issuer risk. In relation to the Fund, it can arise from receivables to another party, placing deposits
with other entities, transacting in debt securities and entering into repurchase agreements.

Credit risk is generally higher when a non-exchange traded financial instrument isinvolved, because
the counterparty for non-exchange traded financial instrumentsis not backed by an exchange clearing
house. The Fund' s Investment Manager has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Counterparty risk associated with transacting in debt securitiesis
monitored by use of qualitative and quantitative criteria, including credit ratings. The Fund's
Prospectus provides details of the credit rating restrictions imposed on the Fund. The Fund's credit
risk concentration is spread between financial instruments and balances due from brokers as
presented in the Statement of Financial Position.

The Fund's global sub-custodian (BBH), who also provides custodian and payment services, is rated
as A+, best quality grade, by Fitch (2023: A+). Substantially all of the investments in debt securities
and repurchase agreements of the Fund are held by BBH at the year end. Bankruptcy or insolvency of
the Depositary, Custodian or BBH may cause the Fund' s rights with respect to its cash and
investments in debt securities held by the Depositary to be delayed or limited.

The cash is swept on anightly basis to pre-approved financial institutions and returned the day after.
Asat 31st March, 2024 and 2023, the cash balances were held at Citibank, New Y ork, which israted
as A+ best quality grade for long-term and A-1 for short-term, by S& P Global Ratings and JPM
Chase, New York, which israted as A+ best quality grade for long-term and A-1 for short-term, by
S& P Global Ratings.

The maximum exposure to thisrisk at 31st March, 2024 and 2023 is the amount of cash disclosed in
Note 3, pending trades as disclosed in Receivable for investments sold and Receivable for Funds
Units sold in the Statement of Financial Position and the investments in securities disclosed in the
Fund' s Schedule of Investments. The credit ratings and risk exposure for cash and investment
positions have been included in Note 10(a).

The counterparty for the Repurchase Agreement held as at 31st March, 2024 and 2023 is Bank of
AmericaMerrill Lynch, rated as A+ by S& P Global Ratings.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(c) Credit Risk (Continued)

To mitigate the risks the Fund is exposed to from the use of the Depositary, and any other
counterparties, the Investment Manager employs appropriate procedures to ensure that the
counterparties are reputabl e institutions and that the credit risk is acceptable to the Fund. The Fund
only transacts with custodians that are regulated entities subject to prudential supervision, or with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In additional, the Fund's securities
are maintained by the Depositary in segregated accounts through its custody network. Thusin the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Depositary, Custodian or BBH the Fund's securities are
segregated and protected and this further reduces counterparty risk. The Fund's cashisheld at a
polled level through its custody network, which in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the sub-
custodian within the custody network, would be treated as a general creditor.

The Fund bears the risk of subscription default. For the purposes of efficient portfolio management,
the Investment Manager may purchase securities or utilise efficient portfolio management techniques
and instruments on the basis that settlement monies will be received on the relevant settlement date.
In the event such settlement monies are not received by the Fund on or by the relevant settlement
date, the Fund may have to sell such purchased securities or close out its position under such efficient
portfolio management techniques and instruments which could result in aloss to the Fund
notwithstanding that a subscriber who defaults in settling a subscription payment may be liable to the
Fund for any such loss.

At 31st March, 2024 and 2023, the Fund used repurchase agreements for efficient portfolio
management purposes. The exposure, counterparties, the type and amount of collateral (where
applicable) and any revenues and costs from using these techniques are all detailed below:

31st March, 2024
Net Collateral Settlement
Collaterd Type of Exposure Received Maturity and
Issuer Collatera US$ US$ Quality Tenor Country Clearing
u.S
U.S. Treasury Morethan  United

Government Notes 748,000 798,000 AAA 3years States Tri Party
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(c) Credit Risk (Continued)
31st March, 2023
Net Collateral Settlement
Collaterd Type of Exposure Received Maturity and
Issuer Collatera US$ US$ Quadlity Tenor Country Clearing
U.S.
U.S. Treasury Morethan  United
Government Notes 3,829,000 4,286,000 AAA 3years States Tri Party

Revenues and costs arising from the efficient portfolio management techniques employed were as
follows:

31st March, 2024

Revenues Costs
Repurchase Agreements US$ US$
Investment interest income 78,889 -
31st March, 2023

Revenues Costs
Repurchase Agreements USs$ US$
Investment interest income 44,191 -

The Fund may not hold more than 10% of any class of security issued by any single issuer. For this
purpose, al debt securities of any single issuer are considered in the aggregate as a single class.

(d) Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
All of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund are held at fair value.

(e) Gains and Losses on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities held for Trading through Profit or
Loss

The net gain/(loss) from trading in financial assets included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income arose as aresult of trading in securities.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(f) Fair Vaue Estimation
The Fund has classified fair value measurements using afair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

FRS 102 Section 11.27 on “Fair Vaue Disclosure” requires disclosure relating to the fair value
hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised for assets and liabilities. The disclosures
are based on athree-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure
fair value. In March 2016 amendments were made to paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements
with those in IFRS 13 Fair Vaue Measurement and historical practice with those in Irish GAAP.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The
fair value measurements are categorised within athree-level hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is
based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valuation of each of the Fund's
investments. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication
of the risk associated with investing in those securities.

Thethree levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
Fund can access at the measurement date.

The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 1 generally include actively traded domestic
and certain foreign equity securities, certain U.S. government obligations, derivatives actively traded
on a national securities exchange (such as some futures and options), and shares of open-end mutual
funds (even if their investments are valued using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs).

Level 2 —Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed
using market data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 2 generaly include cleared derivatives and
certain OTC derivatives such as swaps, options, swaptions, and forward currency contracts valued
using industry standard models; certain restricted securities valued at the most recent available
market or quoted price; and certain securities that are valued at the local price and adjusted by
applying a premium or discount when the holdings exceed foreign ownership limitations.
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10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(f) Fair Vaue Estimation (Continued)

Level 3—Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market datais unavailable) for the asset or liability.
The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 3 generally include, but are not limited to,
certain debt securities (such as asset-backed, mortgage-backed, loans and sovereign debt) and
derivatives even though they are valued using broker quotes; certain debt securities and derivatives
adjusted by a specified discount for liquidity or other considerations; certain sovereign debt securities
valued using comparable securities issued by the sovereign adjusted by a specified spread; securities
whose trading has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading
exchange valued at the most recent available market or quoted price; securitiesin default or
bankruptcy proceedings for which there is no current market quotation valued at the most recent
available market or quoted price; potential litigation recoveries and interests related to bankruptcy
proceedings; third-party investment funds where valuations are provided by fund sponsors and which
are adjusted for liquidity considerations as well as the timing of the receipt of information and certain
securities that are valued using a price from a comparable security related to the same issuer.

Thelevel inthe fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in
its entirety. The significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.
If afair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Assessing
the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the Investment
Manager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.
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The tables below and overleaf provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial

assets, measured at fair value at 31st March, 2024 and 2023:

31st March, 2024 Level 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Totd
Assets US$ US$ US$ US$
Financial assets held for trading:

Corporate Debt Obligations - 92,324,881 - 92,324,881
Repurchase Agreements - 748,000 - 748,000
Total Assets - 93,072,881 - 93,072,881
31st March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totd
Assets US$ US$ US$ US$
Financial assets held for trading:

Corporate Debt Obligations - 93,294,221 - 93,294,221
Repurchase Agreements - 3,829,000 - 3,829,000
Total Assets - 97,123,221 - 97,123221

Asat 31st March, 2024 and 2023, the Fund had no Level 3 investments.

TOTAL EQUITY

For unitholder dealing purposes, transactions are accounted for on atrade date plus 1 Business Day
basis. For financial reporting purposes, transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. In
accordance with FRS 102, Section 1, “Basic Financia Instruments’, transactions occurring between
close of business on the last trade date and the financial reporting year end date have required an
adjustment between Total Equity (for Unitholder Dealing Purposes) and Total Equity (for Financial

Reporting Purposes). This adjustment is outlined in the table below:

Asa Asa

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

USs$ USs

Total Equity (for Unitholder Dealing Purposes) 94,347,727 97,640,314
Trade Date and Year End Accrual Adjustments (60,783)* (37,044)*
Total Equity (for Financia Reporting Purposes) 94,286,944 97,603,270

* For the years ended 31st March, 2024 and 2023: (0.06)% and (0.04)% of Total Equity for Financial

Reporting Purposes, respectively.
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EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been used to trandate assets and liabilities in currencies other than
US$ at year end:

Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Euro 1.08000 1.08715

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the AIFM are not aware of any transactions with related persons during the year
ended 31st March, 2024, other than those disclosed in these financial statements. The Depositary,
SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited, the Custodian, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London
Branch), the AIFM, Administrator and Registrar, SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, the
Investment Manager, Wellington Management Company LLP, the Agent Securities Company and
Distributor in Japan, Daiwa Securities Co., Ltd., the Other Distributors in Japan, Marusan Securities
Co., Ltd. and Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd., are regarded as related parties of the Fund under FRS
102 “Related Party Disclosures’.

Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Amounts payable to related parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 4.

Asat 31st March, 2024, Daiwa Securities Co., Ltd., an Agent Securities Company and Distributor of
the Fund, owned 96.20% of the Units on behalf of its clients (2023: 95.94%).

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the year has not been presented though the details
may be obtained free of charge from SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited.
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NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PERUNIT

The following table shows the total Net Assets and Net Asset Value per Unit for each of the last two
years:

Net Asset Value

Y ear Net Assets per Unit
Uss$ US$

31st March, 2024* 94,347,727 6.10
31st March, 2023* 97,640,314 5.88

* Unitholder Dealing Net Assets and Net Asset Value per Unit. See Notes 7 and 11 for the
reconciliation between Unitholder Dealing information and Financial Reporting information.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
There were no significant events affecting the Fund during year.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events affecting the Fund subsequent to the year end up to the date the
financia statements were approved.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financia statements were approved by the Directors of the AIFM on 11 July, 2024.
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Asat 31st March, 2024

Nominal  Fair Value % of
Holding USs$ NAV
Corporate Debt Obligations
Austraia 0.93% (31st March, 2023: 1.14%)
FMG Resources
5.88%, 4/15/30 (Series‘144A’) 805,000 792,104 0.84
4.38%, 4/01/31 (Series‘ 144A’) 100,000 89,346 0.09
881,450 0.93
Bermuda 2.50% (31st March, 2023: 1.83%)
NCL Corporation
5.88%, 2/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 400,000 395,261 0.42
8.38%, 2/01/28 (Series‘144A") 385,000 406,674 0.43
8.13%, 1/15/29 (Series ‘' 144A’) 20,000 21,156 0.02
Viking Cruises Ltd
5.88%, 9/15/27 (Series‘ 144A") 125,000 122,678 0.13
9.13%, 7/15/31 (Series ‘' 144A’) 340,000 372,091 0.39
Weatherford International
8.63%, 4/30/30 (Series‘144A’) 1,000,000 1,043,993 111
2,361,853 2.50
Canada 4.11% (31st March, 2023: 2.81%)
1011778 BC ULC/New Red Finance Incorporated
3.88%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 120,000 112,792 0.12
4.38%, 1/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 125,000 118,043 0.13
3.50%, 2/15/29 (Series‘144A’) 585,000 534,271 0.57
4.00%, 10/15/30 (Series ‘' 144A") 170,000 151,171 0.16
Bausch Health Companies Incorporated
11%, 9/30/28 (Series ‘ 144A") 325,000 216,938 0.23
Bausch N Lomb Escrow
8.38%, 10/01/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 560,000 577,830 0.61
Enerflex Ltd
9.00%, 10/15/27 (Series ' 144A") 925,000 948,725 1.01
Nova Chemicals Corp
8.50%, 11/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A") 330,000 351,210 0.37
Open Text Corporation
6.90%, 12/01/27 (Series ' 144A") 145,000 149,903 0.16
3.88%, 12/01/29 (Series ‘' 144A’) 485,000 432,377 0.46
4.13%, 12/01/31 (Series ' 144A") 310,000 271,991 0.29

3,865,251 411
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(Continued)
Nominal  Fair Value % of
Holding Uss$ NAV
Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
Cayman Idands 1.21% (31st March, 2023: 0.38%)
Foreign Diamond
8.50%, 10/01/30 (Series ‘' 144A") 670,000 707,019 0.75
Transocean Incorporated
8.75%, 2/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 465,000 436,257 0.46
1,143,276 121
France 1.77% (31st March, 2023: 1.98%)
Altice France SA.
8.13%, 2/01/27 (Series‘144A’) 810,000 624,770 0.66
5.50%, 10/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 200,000 135,455 0.14
Constellium SE
5.63%, 6/15/28 (Series‘144A’) 250,000 243,054 0.26
3.75%, 4/15/29 (Series ‘ 144A’) 295,000 265,498 0.28
Iliad Holding
6.50%, 10/15/26 (Series ‘' 144A") 205,000 203,135 0.22
7.00%, 10/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A") 200,000 197,901 0.21
1,669,813 1.77
Ireland 1.19% (31st March, 2023: 0.66%)
Ardagh Packaging Finance PLC/Ardagh Holdings USA
Incorporated
4.13%, 8/15/26 (Series‘ 144A’) 495,000 448,158 0.48
5.25%, 8/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 665,000 418,950 0.44
Atlas LuxCo
4.63%, 6/01/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 275,000 249,957 0.27
1,117,065 1.19
Jersey 0.88% (31st March, 2023: 1.04%)
Adient Global Holdings Limited
4.88%, 8/15/26 (Series‘ 144A’) 855,000 833,740 0.88
833,740 0.88
Liberia1.41% (31st March, 2023: 1.57%)
Royal Caribbean Cruises
5.50%, 8/31/26 (Series‘144A’) 1,050,000 1,040,991 1.10
5.38%, 7/15/27 (Series ‘144A’) 200,000 197,150 0.21
7.25%, 1/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 90,000 93,585 0.10

1,331,726 141
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(Continued)
Nominal  Fair Value % of
Holding Uss$ NAV
Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
Luxembourg 1.09% (31st March, 2023: 0.27%)
Altice Financing
5.75%, 8/15/29 (Series ‘ 144A’) 400,000 320,446 0.34
Altice France Holding
10.5%, 5/15/27 (Series ‘144A’) 325,000 120,301 0.13
Telecom Italia Capita
6.38%, 11/15/33 290,000 273,979 0.29
7.20%, 7/18/36 195,000 190,315 0.20
7.721%, 6/04/38 125,000 125,228 0.13
1,030,269 1.09
Netherlands 2.34% (31st March, 2023: 1.65%)
Axalta Coating Systems
7.25%, 2/15/31 (Series‘ 144A’) 295,000 306,644 0.33
Constellium NV
5.88%, 2/15/26 (Series‘144A’) 173,000 171,813 0.18
Teva Pharmaceuticals
8.13%, 9/15/31 200,000 219,350 0.23
Trivium Packaging Finance BV
5.50%, 8/15/26 (Series‘144A’) 300,000 296,230 0.31
8.50%, 8/15/27 (Series‘144A’) 200,000 197,122 0.21
UPC Broadband Finco BV
4.88%, 7/15/31 (Series‘144A’) 625,000 557,798 0.59
Ziggo BV
4.88%, 1/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 515,000 462,214 0.49
2,211,171 2.34
Panama 1.06% (31st March, 2023: 1.15%)
Carnival Corporation
6.00%, 5/01/29 (Series‘144A’) 820,000 808,763 0.86
10.50%, 6/01/30 (Series ‘' 144A’) 170,000 185,948 0.20
994,711 1.06
United Kingdom 0.95% (31st March, 2023: 1.26%)
Virgin MediaFinance Plc
5.00%, 7/15/30 400,000 338,124 0.36
Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC
4.50%, 8/15/30 (Series‘144A’) 640,000 553,991 0.59

892,115 0.95
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(Continued)
Nominal  Fair Value % of
Holding Uss$ NAV

Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
United States 78.48% (31st March, 2023: 79.37%)
ABC Supply Co. Incorporated

4.00%, 1/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 358,000 335,996 0.36
Advanced Drainage Systems Incorporated

5.00%, 9/30/27 (Series‘144A’) 363,000 352,144 0.37

6.38%, 6/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 307,000 308,628 0.33
Allied Universa

9.75%, 7/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 150,000 150,407 0.16
Allied Universal Holdco

7.88%, 2/15/31 (Series‘144A’) 565,000 572,371 0.61
AMC Networks Incorporated

10.25%, 1/15/29 (Series ‘' 144A’) 225,000 226,406 0.24
AmeriGas Partners L P/AmeriGas Finance Corporation

5.50%, 5/20/25 329,000 329,280 0.35

5.88%, 8/20/26 413,000 412,368 0.44

9.38%, 6/01/28 (Series‘144A’) 190,000 196,728 0.21
Antero Midstream Partners LP/Antero Midstream
Finance Corporation

5.75%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 300,000 295,487 0.31

6.63%, 2/01/32 (Series‘144A’) 425,000 427,169 0.45
Aramark Services Incorporated

5.00%, 2/01/28 (Series ‘144A’) 275,000 265,343 0.28
Asbury Automotive Group

4.63%, 11/15/29 (Series ‘' 144A") 360,000 332,238 0.35

4.75%, 3/01/30 85,000 78,295 0.08

5.00%, 2/15/32 (Series‘144A’) 205,000 185,720 0.20
Ashton Woods USA LLC/Ashton Woods Finance
Company

6.63%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 572,000 573,851 0.61

4.63%, 8/01/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 147,000 135,641 0.15

4.63%, 4/01/30 (Series‘ 144A’) 111,000 101,445 0.11
AssuredPartners Incorporated

5.63%, 1/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 695,000 640,196 0.68

7.50%, 2/15/32 (Series‘ 144A’) 260,000 255,469 0.27
ATI Incorporated

5.88%, 12/01/27 255,000 251,233 0.27

4.88%, 10/01/29 270,000 254,188 0.27

7.25%, 8/15/30 95,000 98,206 0.10
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Nominal  Fair Value % of
Holding Uss$ NAV
Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)

United States 78.48% (31st March, 2023: 79.37%) (Continued)
Avantor Funding Incorporated

4.63%, 7/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 803,000 760,812 0.81
Avient Corporation

7.13%, 8/01/30 (Series‘144A") 501,000 515,168 0.55
B& G Foods Incorporated

5.25%, 9/15/27 295,000 275,709 0.29

8.00%, 9/15/28 (Series‘144A") 205,000 213,465 0.23
Block Incorporated

2.75%, 6/01/26 300,000 282,034 0.30

3.50%, 6/01/31 260,000 226,564 0.24
Boyd Gaming Corporation

4.75%, 12/01/27 160,000 154,514 0.16

4.75%, 6/15/31 (Series ‘' 144A") 230,000 211,401 0.22
Buckeye Partners LP

4.13%, 3/01/25 (Series‘ 144A’) 260,000 254,107 0.27

3.95%, 1/12/26 343,000 327,994 0.35

4.13%, 1/12/27 205,000 192,939 0.20

4.50%, 3/01/28 (Series‘144A’) 265,000 251,672 0.27

5.60%, 10/15/44 176,000 140,549 0.15
Builders FirstSource Incorporated

5.00%, 3/01/30 (Series‘144A’) 725,000 692,784 0.74

4.25%, 2/01/32 (Series‘ 144A’) 5,000 4,485 0.00
Caesars Entertainment Incorporated

4.63%, 10/15/29 (Series ‘ 144A’) 335,000 305,430 0.32

6.50%, 2/15/32 (Series‘ 144A’) 200,000 201,863 0.21
CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corporation

4.50%, 8/15/30 (Series‘ 144A") 310,000 260,882 0.28

4.25%, 2/01/31 (Series‘ 144A’) 1,300,000 1,062,190 1.13

7.38%, 3/01/31 (Series‘144A’) 250,000 245,226 0.26

4.25%, 1/15/34 (Series ' 144A’) 675,000 510,035 0.54
Century Communities

3.88%, 8/15/29 (Series‘144A’) 705,000 634,821 0.67
CHS/Community Health Systems Incorporated

5.25%, 5/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 10,000 8,155 0.01

4.75%, 2/15/31 (Series ' 144A") 650,000 502,178 0.53
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United States 78.48% (31st March, 2023: 79.37%) (Continued)
Cinemark USA Incorporated

5.25%, 7/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 375,000 354,987 0.38
Clarios International Inc

6.75%, 5/15/28 (Series‘144A") 365,000 370,009 0.39
Clean Harbors Incorporated

4.88%, 7/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 106,000 102,825 0.11

6.38%, 2/01/31 (Series‘144A") 40,000 40,290 0.04
Clear Channel Outdoor

9.00%, 9/15/28 (Series‘144A’) 735,000 766,190 0.81

7.50%, 6/01/29 (Series‘144A") 175,000 144,776 0.15

7.88%, 4/01/30 (Series‘144A") 95,000 94,458 0.10
Clearway Energy

3.75%, 1/15/32 (Series ‘ 144A") 85,000 71,428 0.08
Clearway Energy Operating LLC

4.75%, 3/15/28 (Series 144A’) 130,000 123,582 0.13

3.75%, 2/15/31 (Series 144A’) 750,000 643,615 0.68
Clydesdale Acquisition

6.63%, 4/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 530,000 530,241 0.56

8.75%, 4/15/30 (Series ‘144A’) 350,000 344,133 0.37
Colt Merger Sub Incorporated

8.13%, 7/01/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 400,000 409,713 0.43
Condor Merger Sub Incorporated

7.38%, 2/15/30 (Series ‘' 144A") 1,470,000 1,345,588 1.43
Credit Acceptance Corporation

6.63%, 3/15/26 210,000 209,857 0.22

9.25%, 12/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 235,000 252,897 0.27
Crocs Incorporated

4.25%, 3/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 259,000 236,554 0.25

4.13%, 8/15/31 (Series‘144A’) 238,000 206,210 0.22
CSC HoldingsLLC

11.75%, 1/31/29 (Series ‘' 144A’) 875,000 876,236 0.93

45.75%, 1/15/30 (Series ' 144A") 1,010,000 534,700 0.57
Darling Ingredients Incorporated

6.00%, 6/15/30 (Series ‘144A’) 350,000 346,918 0.37

Dish DBS Corp
5.75%, 12/01/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 200,000 137,488 0.15
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Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
DT Midstream Incorporated

4.13%, 6/15/29 (Series ' 144A") 750,000 689,503 0.73
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation

5.00%, 12/15/29 (Series ‘' 144A’) 849,000 784,199 0.83
Earthstone Energy

8.00%, 4/15/27 (Series‘144A’) 560,000 576,798 0.61
Emerald Debt Merger Sub LLC

6.63%, 12/15/30 (Series ‘' 144A’) 495,000 499,899 0.53
Endure Digital Incorporated

6.00%, 2/15/29 (Series‘144A’) 947,000 741,993 0.79
Energizer Holdings Incorporated

6.50%, 12/31/27 (Series ' 144A’) 280,000 278,495 0.30
EnLink Midstream LLC/Partners

5.63%, 1/15/28 (Series‘144A") 673,000 666,279 0.71

5.38%, 6/01/29 175,000 171,719 0.18

6.50%, 9/01/30 (Series ‘144A’) 15,000 15,427 0.02

5.05%, 4/01/45 - - -
Entegris Escrow Corporation

4.75%, 4/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 645,000 617,671 0.66
EQM Midstream Partners LP

7.50%, 6/01/27 (Series‘144A") 30,000 30,750 0.03

6.50%, 7/01/27 (Series‘144A’) 185,000 186,624 0.20

4.50%, 1/15/29 (Series‘144A’) 391,000 366,558 0.39

7.50%, 6/01/30 (Series‘144A") 30,000 32,078 0.03

4.75%, 1/15/31 (Series‘ 144A") 165,000 153,402 0.16

6.50%, 7/15/48 225,000 225,600 0.24
Fair Isaac Corporation

4.00%, 6/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 352,000 328,908 0.35
Freedom Mortgage Corporation

7.63%, 5/01/26 (Series‘144A’) 195,000 194,681 0.21

12.00%, 10/01/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 175,000 190,753 0.20

9.25%, 2/01/29 (Series ‘ 144A’) 40,000 40,940 0.04

12.25%, 10/01/30 (Series ' 144A") 125,000 137,453 0.15
Frontier Communications Corporation

5.88%, 10/15/27 (Series ‘' 144A") 430,000 416,259 0.44

5.00%, 5/01/28 (Series‘144A’) 505,000 468,775 0.50

6.75%, 5/01/29 (Series‘144A") 355,000 316,491 0.34

5.88%, 11/01/29 63,933 54,023 0:06
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Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
Gen Digital Incorporated

6.75%, 9/30/27 (Series‘144A") 375,000 380,363 0.40

7.13%, 9/30/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 375,000 385,317 041
Genworth Mortgage Holdings Incorporated

6.50%, 8/15/25 (Series‘144A") 730,000 729,854 0.77
Global Payments Incorporated

1.50%, 3/01/31 (Series ‘144A’) 186,000 196,604 0.21
Go Daddy Opco Finco

3.50%, 3/01/29 (Series‘144A’) 775,000 699,122 0.74
Graphic Packaging

3.75%, 2/01/30 (Series‘144A") 250,000 222,331 0.24
GTCRW-2 Merger Sub LLC

7.50%, 1/15/31 (Series‘144A’) 465,000 487,007 0.52
Herc Holdings Incorporated

5.50%, 7/15/27 (Series‘144A") 640,000 628,538 0.67
Hub International Ltd

7.25%, 6/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 650,000 668,214 0.71

7.38%, 1/31/32 (Series ‘ 144A") 470,000 473,165 0.50
li-Vi Incorporated

5.00%, 12/15/29 (Series ‘' 144A") 400,000 376,560 0.40
ImolaMerger Corporation

4.75%, 5/15/29 (Series ‘ 144A’) 770,000 722,094 0.77
Insulet Corporation

0.38%, 9/01/26 235,000 244,886 0.26
IQVIA Incorporated

5.00%, 5/15/27 (Series‘144A’) 200,000 195,284 0.21
Iron Mountain Incorporated

7.00%, 2/15/29 (Series‘144A") 475,000 483,862 0.51

5.25%, 7/15/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 275,000 260,145 0.28
JetBlue Airways Corporation

0.50%, 4/01/26 275,000 240,314 0.26
KB Home

4.80%, 11/15/29 295,000 281,193 0.30

4.00%, 6/15/31 190,000 168,472 0.18

Lamar Media Corporation
3.75%, 2/15/28 400,000 373,783 0.40

140/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159

Do00000000000000000
Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Schedule of Investments
Asat 31st March, 2024

(Continued)
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Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
LBM Acquisition LLC

6.25%, 1/15/29 (Series‘144A") 1,070,000 1,003,004 1.06
M/l Homes Incorporated

4.95%, 2/01/28 510,000 486,461 0.52

3.95%, 2/15/30 205,000 184,475 0.20
Magic Merge Co Incorporated

5.25%, 5/01/28 (Series‘144A’) 890,000 758,674 0.80
Matador Resources Company

6.88%, 4/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 445,000 455,274 0.48

6.50%, 4/15/32 (Series‘144A’) 30,000 30,087 0.03
Mauser Packaging/Sol

7.88%, 8/15/26 (Series‘144A") 230,000 234,356 0.25

9.25%, 4/15/27 (Series‘144A’) 350,000 347,035 0.37
MGIC Investment Corporation

5.25%, 8/15/28 650,000 631,891 0.67
Middleby Corporation

1.00%, 9/01/25 128,000 168,143 0.18
Minerva Merger Sub Incorporated

6.50%, 2/15/30 (Series ‘144A’) 945,000 864,753 0.92
Mozart Debt Merger

3.88%, 4/01/29 (Series‘144A") 1,323,000 1,205,533 1.28

5.25%, 10/01/29 (Series ' 144A") 438,000 413,913 0.44
MSCI Incorporated

3.63%, 9/01/30 (Series‘144A’) 340,000 301,637 0.32

3.88%, 2/15/31 (Series ‘' 144A’) 95,000 84,758 0.09
Nabors Industries Incorporated

9.13%, 1/31/30 (Series ‘144A") 320,000 332,691 0.35
Nationstar M ortgage Holdings I ncorporated

5.50%, 8/15/28 (Series‘144A’) 35,000 33,507 0.04

5.13%, 12/15/30 (Series ‘' 144A") 540,000 489,963 0.52

7.13%, 2/1/32 (Series ‘144A") 120,000 119,112 0.13
Newfold Digital Holdings

11.75%, 10/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A") 110,000 119,082 0.13
Noble Financell LLC

8.00%, 4/15/30 (Series ‘' 144A’) 674,000 702,396 0.74
Northern Oil & Gas Incorporated

3.63%, 4/15/29 (Series‘144A") 150,000 182,519 0.19

8.75%, 6/15/31 250,000 264,049 0.28
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Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)
Novelis Corporation

3.25%, 11/15/26 (Series ‘' 144A") 155,000 144,425 0.15

4.75%, 1/30/30 (Series ‘ 144A’) 615,000 567,691 0.60

3.88%, 8/15/31 (Series‘144A") 160,000 137,457 0.15
Olympus WTR US Holdings

9.75%, 11/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A") 650,000 692,375 0.73
ON Semiconductor Corp

0.50%, 3/01/29 300,000 295,839 0.31
OneMain Finance Corporation

9.00%, 1/15/29 217,000 230,211 0.24

5.38%, 11/15/29 305,000 286,756 0.30

7.88%, 3/15/30 165,000 170,174 0.18
Owens-Brockway Glass Container Incorporated

7.25%, 5/15/31 (Series‘144A") 395,000 402,275 0.43
PennyMac Financial Services Incorporated

5.38%, 10/15/25 (Series ‘' 144A") 555,000 548,637 0.58
Performance Food Group Incorporated

5.50%, 10/15/27 (Series ‘' 144A’) 665,000 652,539 0.69
PetSmart Incorporated/PetSmart Finance Corporation

4.75%, 2/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 1,050,000 983,008 1.03
Post Holdings Incorporated

5.63%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘' 144A’) 481,000 472,388 0.50
Presidio Holdings Incorporated

4.88%, 2/01/27 (Series ' 144A’) 233,000 225,994 0.24

8.25%, 2/01/28 (Series ‘144A") 360,000 358,641 0.38
Prestige Brands Incorporated

5.13%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘144A") 275,000 267,882 0.28
Range Resources Corporation

4.88%, 5/15/25 70,000 69,474 0.07

4.75%, 2/15/30 (Series‘ 144A’) 191,000 178,101 0.19
Rexford Industrial

4.38%, 3/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 125,000 126,563 0.13

4.13%, 3/15/29 (Series‘144A’) 125,000 126,480 0.13
RHP Hotel Properties LP

7.25%, 7/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 490,000 504,609 0.54

6.50%, 4/01/32 (Series ‘144A") 70,000 70,259 0.07
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Roblox Corporation

3.88%, 5/01/30 (Series‘144A") 720,000 634,401 0.67
Scripps Escrow Incorporated

5.88%, 7/15/27 (Series‘144A") 815,000 681,950 0.72
Service Corporation International

4.63%, 12/15/27 50,000 48,331 0.05

3.38%, 8/15/30 450,000 389,482 041
Sirius XM Radio Incorporated

3.13%, 9/01/26 (Series‘ 144A’) 310,000 290,460 0.31

4.13%, 7/01/30 (Series‘ 144A’) 250,000 218,525 0.23
SM Energy Corporation

6.75%, 9/15/26 305,000 305,282 0.32

6.50%, 7/15/28 160,000 160,670 0.17
Specialty Building Products Holdings LLC/SBP
Finance Corporation

6.38%, 9/30/26 (Series‘144A’) 549,000 545,093 0.58
Speedway Motorsports LL C/Speedway Funding 11
Incorporated

4.88%, 11/01/27 (Series ‘ 144A’) 649,000 617,851 0.66
Spirit Aerosystems Incorporated

9.38%, 11/30/29 (Series ‘' 144A") 670,000 730,831 0.78
Springleaf Finance Corporation

7.13%, 3/15/26 490,000 499,161 0.53
SRS Distribution Incorporated

4.63%, 7/01/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 360,000 362,678 0.38
Standard Industries Incorporated

4.38%, 7/15/30 (Series‘ 144A’) 275,000 247,136 0.26
Station CasinosLLC

6.63%, 3/15/32 (Series‘144A") 485,000 490,060 0.52
STL Holding Company LLC

7.50%, 2/15/26 (Series‘144A’) 400,000 410,516 0.44
Sugarhouse HSP Gaming Prop Mezz LP

5.88%, 5/15/25 (Series‘144A") 335,000 334,071 0.35
Surgery Center Holdings (Series ‘ 144A")

7.25%, 4/15/32 200,000 201,670 0.21
Taylor Morrison Communities I ncorporated

5.75%, 1/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 530,000 526,615 0.56

5.13%, 8/01/30 (Series‘144A") 195,000 186,230 0.20
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Tenet Healthcare Corporation

6.13%, 6/15/30 700,000 698,384 0.74
TransDigm Incorporated

5.50%, 11/15/27 770,000 753,982 0.80

6.75%, 8/15/28 (Series‘144A") 185,000 187,663 0.20

6.63%, 3/01/32 (Series ‘ 144A’) 180,000 181,917 0.19
Trinet Group Incorporated

7.13%, 8/15/31 (Series‘ 144A’) 475,000 487,454 0.52
Uber Technologies Incorporated

8.00%, 11/01/26 (Series ‘' 144A’) 300,000 303,614 0.32

0.88%, 12/01/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 185,000 229,215 0.24

4.50%, 8/15/29 (Series‘ 144A’) 962,000 912,631 0.97
UKG Incorporated

6.88%, 2/01/31 (Series‘144A") 900,000 916,862 0.97
United Rentals North America Incorporated

4.88%, 1/15/28 345,000 335,775 0.36

3.88%, 2/15/31 185,000 165,765 0.18

3.75%, 1/15/32 65,000 56,753 0.06
USA Company Partners

6.88%, 9/01/27 (Series‘144A’) 350,000 354,711 0.38
Vertical US Newco Incorporated

5.25%, 7/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 350,000 338,223 0.36
Vital Energy Incorporated

7.75%, 7/31/29 (Series ‘ 144A") 75,000 75,620 0.08

9.75%, 10/15/30 625,000 683,391 0.72

7.88%, 4/15/32 (Series‘ 144A’) 25,000 25,422 0.03
Welltower OPLLC

2.75%, 5/15/28 (Series ‘ 144A’) 230,000 256,427 0.27
Williams Scotsman International

4.63%, 8/15/28 (Series‘ 144A’) 591,000 559,068 0.59
Windsor Holdings |11 LLC

8.50%, 6/15/30 (Series‘144A’) 475,000 497,929 0.53
Wynn LasVegas LLC/Wynn Las Vegas Capital
Corporation

5.25%, 5/15/27 (Series‘ 144A’) 220,000 215,759 0.23

7.13%, 2/15/31 (Series ‘' 144A’) 760,000 786,570 0.83

Xerox Holdings Corporation
5.00%, 8/15/25 (Series‘144A’) 11,000 10,851 0.01
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Corporate Debt Obligations (Continued)

Yum! Brands Incorporated
3.63%, 3/15/31
4.63%, 1/31/32
5.38%, 4/01/32

Repurchase Agreements

United States 0.79% (31st March, 2023: 3.92%)
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 5.31%, 4/01/24
(Collateralised by U.S. Treasury Notes 2.625% due
05/31/27 vaued at US$798,000, held with Bank of
AmericaMerrill Lynch)

Financial assets a fair value through profit or loss
Cash
Other Net Assets

Total Equity
(for Financial Reporting Purposes)

Nominal
Holding

145,000
209,000
281,000

748,000

Fair Vaue % of
Uss$ NAV
128,357 0.14
192,928 0.20
272,199 0.29
73,992,441 78.48
748,000 0.79
748,000 0.79
93,072,881 08.71
11,040 0.01
1,203,023 1.28
94,286,944 100.00

Series ‘144A’ - A Securities & Exchange Commission rule modifying a two-year holding period
requirement on privately placed securities to permit qualified institutional buyers to trade these positions

among themselves.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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93,804,853.87 14,299,612
1,435,043.44 218,758
92,369,810.43 14,080,854
15,130,540
6.10 930
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2024 40 ( 7,830 ) 6,250
( 103 563 )
2019 40 6,250
2020 40 6,250
2021 40 6,250
2022 40 6,250
2023 40 6,250
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2024

10 ( 2,595,219,712.91 309,556,447,344  1,620,799,253.00
394,701.92 )

MMF) 2,493,896,271.28

101,323,441.63

309,556,447,344

1,620,799,253.00

394,701.92
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30

2023 30 2022

( ) « ) ( ) « )
6,581,908 1,085,291 5,779,294 952,948
607,807 100,221 798,359 131,641
7,189,715 1,185,512 6,577,653 1,084,589
14,501,653 2,406,018 14,288,941 2,356,103
15,007,966 2,474,664 35,899,468 5,919,463

22,200,200 3,660,591
51,799,819 8,541,272 50,188,409 8,275,567
10 (5,006,094) (825,455) (5,327,188) (878,400)
46,793,725 7,715,817 44,861,221 7,397,167
53,983,440 8,901,329 51,438,874 8,481,756
11 62,992,338 10,386,807 62,992,338 10,386,807
12 4,050,000 667,805 4,050,000 667,805
212,328 35,011 (28,176) (4,646)
(13,271,226) (2.,188,292) (15,575, 288) (2,568,209)
53,983,440 8,901,329 51,438,874 8,481,756
2024 23
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2023 30 2022 30
( ) « ) ( ) « D
38,906,748 6,415,334 40,420,405 6,664,921
(36,887,230) (6,082,335) (31,724,071) (5.230,982)
2,019,518 332,998 8,696,334 1,433,939
584,573 96,390 (118,081) (19,470)
2,604,001 429,389 8,578,253 1,414,468
(300,029) (49,472) (410,103) (67,622)
2,304,062 379,917 8,168,150 1,346,846
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2023 30 2022 30
2,304,062 379,917 8,168,150 1,346,846
274,862 45,322 96,465 15,906

(34,358) (5,665) (12,058) (1,988)
240,504 39,657 84,407 13,918
2,544,566 419,573 8,252,557 1,360,764
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2023 30
2022 10 62,992,338 4,050,000 (28,176)  (15,575,288) 51,438,874
2,304,062 2,304,062
240,504 240,504
240,504 2,304,062 2,544,566
2023 30 62,992,338 4,050,000 212,328 (13,271,226) 53,983,440
2021 10 62,992,338 4,050,000 (112,583)  (23,743,438) 43,186,317
8,168,150 8,168,150
84,407 84,407
84,407 8,168,150 8,252,557
2022 30 62,992,338 4,050,000 (28,176)  (15,575,288) 51,438,874
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2023 30 2022 30
21,544,086 18,442,605
15,343,144 13,281,466
36,887,230 31,724,071

2023 30 2022 30
15,965,434 13,958,441

1,821,982 1,686,448
1,130,512 980,282
2,626,986 1,817,434
21,544,914 18,442,605
218 2022 215
SMTTIL
2023 30 2022 30
128,000 127,013
925,808 802,603
62,404 55,639
46,500 24,725
6,155 12,100
162,913 87,827
436,762 464,845
1,001,381 732,840
957,257 922,726
17,731 50,858
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2023 30 2022 30
40,951 51
41
259,078 410,011
300,029 410,103

2023 30 2022 30
34,358 12,058

2023 30 2022 30
2,604,091 8,578,253

2022

325,511 1,072,282
(45,957) 14,895
20,475 25
41
(677,140)
300,029 410,103
74,190 74,967
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2023 30
2022 30 14,377,174 14,377,174
1,803,995 1,803,995
2023 30 16,181,169 16,181,169
2022 30 8,597,880 8,597,880
1,001,381 1,001,381
2023 30 9,599,261 9,599,261
2023 30 6,581,908 6,581,908
2022 30
2021 30 12,710,161 12,710,161
1,667,013 1,667,013
2022 30 14,377,174 14,377,174
2021 30 7,865,040 7,865,040
732,840 732,840
2022 30 8,597,880 8,597,880
2022 30 5,779,294 5,779,294

Advent Geneva and Paladyne
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2023 30
2022 30 1,498,550 775,783 3,055,128 5,329,461
146,887 11,731 87,592 246,210
2023 30 1,645,437 787,514 3,142,720 5,575,671
2022 30 1,336,543 736,628 2,457,931 4,531,102
77,204 35,829 323,729 436,762
2023 30 1,413,747 772,457 2,781,660 4,967,864
2023 30 231,690 15,057 361,060 607,807
2022 30
2021 30 1,384,465 753,916 2,610,824 4,749,205
114,085 21,867 444,304 580,256
2022 30 1,498,550 775,783 3,055,128 5,329,461
2021 30 1,277,604 694,820 2,093,833 4,066,257
58,939 41,808 364,098 464,845
2022 30 1,336,543 736,628 2,457,931 4,531,102
2022 30 162,007 39,155 597,197 798,359
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2023 30 2022 30
5,166,913 4,980,347
3,015,665 3,357,671

86,360 116,691
352,810 242,438
3,063,540 2,780,437
- 3,221
2,514,700 2,808,136
391,665
14,591,653 14,288,941
2,576,349 2022 2,711,174
361,204
2023 2022

2023 30 2022 30

4,411,799 5,853,822
10,596,167 30,045,646
15,007,966 35,899,468
22,200,200
22,200,200
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2023 30 2022 30

3,512,942 3,470,376
40,123
45,019
139,011 322,786
82,895 247,385
821,593 821,593
409,530 420,029
5,006,094 5,327,188
340,313 PAYE 2022 433,427 216,706
PRSI 2022 240,381 64,994 2022 78,777
2023 30 2022 30
400,000
100,000,000

400,000 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

2023 30 2022 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

405
2013
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2023 30 2022 30
708,891 18,480 708,891 12,290
1,323,789 36,960 2,032,680
2,032,680 55,440 2,741,571 12,290
2023 30 2022 30
1,130,512 980,282
72,760 72,751
60 65
33
100 8233
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18
2023 30
2,400,000 €2,197,941 €1,598 (€45,934) (€44,336)
955,000,000 €6,564,328 €349,889 €349,889
£2,900,000 €3,275,396 €1,323 (€36,961) (€35,638)
€352,810 (€82,895) €269,915
2023 12 2024 30
466,236
2022 61,420
€352,810 €352,810
€352,810 €352,810
€82,895 €82,895
€82,895 €82,895
2022 30
2,350,000 €2,175,720 €14,060 (€199,220) (€185,160)
730,000,000 €5,360,673 €164,950 (€24,859) €140,091
£2,850,000 €3,229,408 €63,428 (€23,306) €40,122
€242,438 (€247,385) (€4,947)
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2022 12 2023 30
61,420
2021 234,683
€242,438 €242,438
€242,438 €242,438
€247,385 €247,385
€247,385 €247,385
19 2014
2014 357
357 2023 30
20

2024 23
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of financial position
ax af 30 Seplombor 2023

Newtet 0 September ) September

2023 2022
3 [
Fixed assets
Intanzible assets f 6,581,908 5,779 204
Tangible fixed assets 7 607,807 TU8. 359
7.189,7T1% 6,577,653
Curreni assels
Debtors 8 14,591 653 14,288 941
Cash at bank and in hand 9 15,007,966 35,800 468
Current assct investments 9 22,200,200 -
51,799,819 S0, 188 409
Creditors: pmounts falling due within one year [0 {5,006, 094 ) {5,327 188)
Net curreni assels 46,793,725 44 861,221
Net assets 53,953,440 51,438 574
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital I 62,991,338 62,992 338
Additional paid in capital 2 4,050,000 4,050,060
Cash flow hedge reserve 312,328 (28,176)
Profit and loss account (13,271,226} (15,575, 288)
Total shareholders” funds 53983440 51438874

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of this statement of financial position.

On behalf of the board
TncaSigned o Rewcackignad by
Eﬂ‘j Habeern Peiza m«.agm.h.-
TRLLALEURERD F !
Lhirecior Dhrector 23 Jammy 2024
Keiji Nakamra Peter Caltaghan
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
fiw the year ended 30 Neptomber 2023

30 September 30 Seprember
Mo 2023 ma2
L3 t
Turnover 38,006,748 40,420 405
Administrative cxpenscs 3 (36,887,230 (31.724.071)
Profat on ordinary activities before interest amd 2019518 606,334
taxation
Interest income / (cxpensch 584,573 {118,081}
Prafit on ordinarcy activities belore taxation 4 1,604,001 1 578253
Taxation on ordinary activities 3 (300,029) (410, 103)
Profii Tor the year 1.304.062 168,150

All results have been gencrated by continuing operations,
The accompanying notes form an iniegral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
Sare the vear ended 30 Sepfember 2023

Nove 30 Seprember 30 Seprember
2023 22
3 €
Profit for the vear 2.304,062 8,168,150
Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in fair value of 1% 174,862 96 465
cash flow hedges
Income tax on other comprehensive income 3 {34,358} {12,0158)
Other comprehensive income for the yvear, 240,504 #4407
nel of income tax
Total comprehensive mcome lor the vear 21,544,566 B252 557

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of other comprehensive income.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
Jon the vear ended 30 Seprember 2023

Called up  Additional  Cash Mow Profit and Total
share paid in hedging  loss account couity
capital Capital rEsETVE
13 3 € £ €
Balance at | Cetober 2022 62992338 4,050,000 (28,176) (15,575,288) 51436874
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Profit for the year - - - 2,304,062 1,304,062
Other comprehensive income for the
period - - 240,504 - 240,504
Tetal comprehensive income for the
period - £ 240,504 1304062 2,544,566
Tranzacuons with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Issuance of Shares - - - - -
Total comnbubions by and
distnbuilens to owners - - - - -
Balance at 30 September 2023 62991 338 4,050,000 2328 (13.2T1,226) 53,983,440
Calledup  Additional  Cash flow Profin and Toral
share paid in hedging  loss account cquity
capital Capital TEserve
£ £ € L3 L3
Balance at | Oetober 2021 2,992 338 4050, (MM (112,583) (23,743 43%) 43186317
Total comprehensive income for the
period
Profit for the vear - - - B IGR 150 B 168150
Ohiher comprehensive ingome for the
pertod - - 54407 < H4.407
Total comprehensive income for the
period - - #4407 BGH IS0 ¥.252.557
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in cquity
Issuancs of Shares - - - - -
Total contributions by and
distnbutions © owners - - - - -
Batance at 30 September 2022 62997 338 4 (50 000 (28.176) (I15,575,288) 51438874
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the finarciol stotements for the year ended 30 Seprembuer 2023

1 Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (Ircland) Limited (the “Company™) with a registered office at Block 3,
Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, s a private company limited by shares and
ingorporated and domiciled in Ircland,

Thie functional and presentation carreney of these financial statements is Eura.

The Company’s immediate parent underioking, Sumitomo Mitsud Trust (Ireland) Limited
includes the Company in its consolidated financial statements, The consolidated financial
statements of Sumitomo Misul Trust {Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be
obtuned from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ircland.

In these finamcial statements, the Company 15 considered 10 be a qualifying entity (for the
purpeses of this FRS) and has applicd the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the

following disclosures;
#«  Reconcilintion of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning 10 end of the
period;

+ Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and
= Koy Management Personnel compensation.

As the consohidated financial statements of the Company’s ulimate parent, Sumitomo Mitsw
Trust Holdings Inc. include the cquivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the
exemptions under FRS 102 available in respect of the following disclosures:
»  Cerlain disclosures required by FRS 10226 Shave Baved Paymeniy; and,
+  The disclosures required by FRS 10211 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102,12
(her Finoncial festrament Bxsees i respect of financial instruments not falling within
the fair value aceounting mles of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companics Act 2014,

The accounting policics st out below have, unless otherwise staied, been applicd consisiently
to all periods presented 1 these financial statemenis,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the financial stafemends for the vear ended 30 September 2023 (ocantined)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102
{*"FRS 192"") The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
and tssued by the Financial Reporting Council, and promulgated for use in Ireland by Chartered
Accountants Ireland. The Company is also subject to the requirements of the Companies Act
2014,

The Ninancial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modificanon
to a fair value hasis for certam financial mstruments as specified in the accounting policies below

The preparation of the financial statements requires munagement (o make judgements, esimales
and asswmptions that affeet the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilitics, income ond cxpensc (g uscful cconomic life), The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expericnee and various other factors that are believed w be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrving values of assets and liabalities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these cstimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions o

accounting estimates are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Imterest income and intercst expense

Interest income and income expense are recopnised i the income statement on an aceruals basis,
Turnover and Administration Expenses

Tumover comprises fee income from administrtion and management services, which s

acoounied for on an accruals basis. It also includes income earned from the recharpe of services

to other group companics. Turnover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts
paid 1o other service providers. All amounts are charged at normal commercial raes.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming mard of the financial statemens for e vear erded 30 September 2023 (continwed)

Accounting Policies — (continued)
Foreign Currencies

The financial statemenis are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and prescntation
currency of the Company.

Monctary asscts and liabilities denominated in forcign currencics are translated using the
exchange rates prevanling ot the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foregm
currencies are translated at rates which approsamate the rates prevailing at the dates of the
iransaciions,

Mon-monctary assers and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are measured at
fair value. are transkated into curo at the daie the fair value was determined.

Share capital is translated at the exchange mte prevailing at the date of its 15sue.

Profits and losscs ansing from currency translation and on settlement of amounts reecivable and
pavable in foreign currencies are dealt with in the Income statement.

Basic Financial Instrumenis

Trade and other debiors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initinlly af transaction price plus attnbutable tronsaction
costs, Trade and mber creditors are recogmised ininally at transaction price less attnibutable
transaction costs. Subsequent o initial recogmtion they are measured at amortised cost using the
effective imerest method, less any impairment losscs in the case of rade debiors,

Claxl and crrent asser investmens

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand and are recorded at amortised cost. Callnble deposits
and term deposits are recorded at amortised cost.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the financial statemenis for the vear ended 30 September 2023 fcontined)

1 Accouniing Policies — (continued)
Diher financial instruments

Fingnciod instruments mod considered to be Hasie finoncigd inserments (Cvher financiol
Istrments)

Other financial mstrumenis nol mecting the defimbion of Basic Fmancial Instruments are
recognised mmitially at fair value. Subsequent to inttial recogmition other financial instruments are
measured at fair value with changes recognised in the income statement except a8 follows:

- invesiments in equity instruments that are mot publicly maded and whose fair value cannot
ctherwise be measured reliably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

= hedming instruments in a designated hedging refanonship shall be recopnised as set out below.
Derivetive financial instriments o hodging

Dervative financial mstraments are recogmised at fair value, The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recopnised immediately in the income siatement.  However, where denivatives
gualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the noture of the
item being hedeed (see below),

Clal flow hoedges

Cash flow hedpes are used to cover the Company’s exposure o vanability in cash flows that is
attribuable wo particular risk associated with o recognised asset or liability or o firm commitment
which could affect income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument 15 designated as a
hedge of the varability in cash lows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast
transachon, the effective part of any gain of loss on the denvative hnancial insthument is
recognised direetly in Other comprehensive ingome (“OCT). Anv ineffeetive portion of the hedge
is recogmised immediately in the ncome statement.

For cash MNow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial
assct or non-financial lability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OCT is included in the initial
cost or other carrving amount of the asset or liability. Aliernatively when the hedged item is
recognised in the income statement the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to the income statcment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, werminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast ransaction 15 sull expected to ocour,
the cunmulative gain of loss at thal poinl remains i equity and 15 recopnised i accordance with the
ahave policy when the transaction occurs, 1f the hedged transaction is no longer expected o take
place, the cumulative unrcalised pain or loss recoenised in equity 15 recognised in the income
statement immediately,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of e financial statemenis for the vear ended 30 September 2023 fcontineed)

1 Accouniing Policies — (continued)
Taxation

Tasx on the income statement fior the year comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in
the mcome staterment except 1o the extent that it relates (o tems recogmised directly i equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised divectly in equity or other
comprehensive Income.

Current tax s the expected tax payvable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ot the statement of financial position date, and any
adjustment to tax payable m respect of previous vears.

Defemed tax 15 provided on timing differences which anse from the inclusion of income and
CXPENSEs in lax assessments in periods different from those i which they are recognised in the
financial statements, The following tming differences are not provided for: differences between
secumulaied deprecianion and iax allowaneces for the cost of a fixed asset iFand when all conditions
for retaining the tax allowances have been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will
reverse in the forgseeable future and the reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the tming
difference. Deferred tnx 15 not recogniscd on permanent differcnces ansing because cortain types
of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because certain tax charges or
allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense,

Defierred tax 15 measured at the tax mte that 15 expected to apply to the reversal of the related
difference, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
balances are not discounted

Unrelicved tax losses and other deferred tnx asscts are recognised only o the exient that s it
probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not w be recoverable, The
recoverability of deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pard of the financial statermenis for the vear ended 30 September 2023 (contimeed)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Intangible assets

Research amd development
Expenditure on research activitics is recogmised in the income statement as on cxpensc as incurmed.

Expenditure on development activitics may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and suicient resources
to complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure
reliably the expenditure annbutable 1o the intangible asser during its development. Development
activities involve the design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cosl of materals, direet
labour and an appropriaste proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other
development expenditure 15 recogmised in the income siatoment 45 an cxpense as incunred.
Capitalised development cxpenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less
accumiilated impaimment losses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less aecumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, Amaortisation 15 charged in cqual mstalments on the cost of asscts over their expected uscful
liwes and 15 imcluded within admimstration costs.

Useful life
Software T years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject o provisions for impairment where necessary.
Aszers in the course of development are not amoertised unil they are browght inlo use

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed asscis are stoted a0 cost less depreciation. Depreciaiion is charged in cqual
instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is included within
admini stration costs.

Useful hfc
Furnniure and equipmaent 5 years
Software 3 years
Mainflrame Equipment 3 years
Personal Computcrs 2 ycars
Computer Terminals 3 vears
Fund adminsstration system 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subjeet to provisions for impairment where
MACCSSIUTY.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pard of the financioal staterenis for the vear ended 30 September 2023 fcontineed)

1 Accounting Policies — (continued)
Emplovee benefits

The Company operatcs a defined contribution pension scheme for employecs, Obliganons for
contributions 1o defined contnbution pension plans are recogmsed as an expense in the income
atatemient when they are due.

Additional paid in capiial

Subordinated Loans of €405 million previously received from the Company”™s parent, that are mon-
interest beaning and repayable at the Company’s discretion, were reclassified as capital duning 2003,
after a review of their werms and conditions, and the receipt durng 2013 of confirmation from the
Comgpany’s parent and that these amounts are repavable solely at the volinon of the Company and
that the Company s parent will not demand repayment of these amounts.

2 Ownership and operations

The Compuny, which is engaged mn the provision of administration and management company
serviees 10 various funds, 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland)
Limited, o company incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The uliimate parent company s
Sumitomo Mitsui Trast Holdings Inc. a company incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are preparcd on a going concern basis. and it is the intention of the
directors to continue to develop the activitics of the Company in consultation with its parcnt,
Surmitomo Mitsm Trust Bank Limited 15 dircetly supporting the business development of the

Company.
The Company has entered into agreements with various entitics to which it provides scrvices,

Under these agreemaents, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management
company services for an agreed fee,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Farming pard of e financial stotemenis for the vear ended 30 Seplember 2023 (contined)

3 Administrafive expenses

30 September 30 September
13 2022
€ E
Stafl costs 21,544,080 | B 442605
Chther administrative expenses 15,343,144 13,281 466
36,987,230 31,724,071
30 September 30 September
2023 022
€ £

Sterfl costy conmprise:
Wages and salarics 15,965,434 13,955 441
Social welfare costs 1,821,982 |, 686 448
Pension costs 1,130,512 QR0 282
Chher costs 2626986 151743
21,544,914 18,442,605

The avesage number of persens employved by the Company (including direciors) during the
vear was 218 (Scptember 2022: 215), The Company shared the use of facilitics with SMT
Trustees (Ireland) Limated ("SMTTIL™) during the period. The related costs were allocated
and recharged on an agreed basis, as sct out in service lovel agreemenis,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pard of the financiol stotements for the year ended 30 September 2023 fcontined)

4 Pralit on ardinary activities belore taxation

The profit on ordinary activibies before taxation has been defermuned after charging the following:

30 Seplember M Seplember
023 2022
€ €
Threciors” remuneration.
Fecs 128,000 127,013
Oiber remuneration 925 808 #1263
Defined pension contmbution scheme 62,404 55,630
Audiror's rermuneration:
Aundit 46,500 24725
Tax advisory serviges 6,155 12,1060
Ohther assurance scrvices 162,913 BT R27
Other non-audit services - =
Depreciation 436,762 464 845
Amortisation of intangible asscts 1,001,381 732,840
(hporating lease renials;
Land & hui!dingﬁ 957,257 032 T4
il aaseis 17,731 50,858
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming pari of Hhe financial stotemenis for e vear ended 30 September 2023 fcomtined)

5

Taxation on ordinary activities

{a) Total tax recognised in the income siatement

Curvent tax
Current tax on income for the period
Under f{over) provision in respect of prior year

Deforred taxarion

Under / (Ower) provision in prior period
Origination and reversal of timing differences

l'otal tax expensc

(b} Total tax recognised in OC]

Deferred tax charge

(e} Tux reconcilintion

Profit on ordinary activitics before axation

Comparation fax hased on siandard
rate at 12.5% (September 2022- 12,5%)

{Excess) | deficiency of depreciation over
capital allowances

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Differences arising from tax at the higher raic
Loss relicf (utilised) / carried forward

Prior year adjestments

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assct

Total tax charge

Income tax on health insurnce premiums

M Seplember
2023
€

40,951

159,078

00,029

30 Sepiember
2023
€

34,358

30 September
023

3

2,604,091

15,511

(45.957)
20,475

300,029

T4,190

30 September
022
p

51
41

4101

410,003

30 Seprember
2022
"

12,058

30 September
022

€

B.378,233

1,072,282

14,895

25

41

(67T, 1401

410,103

74 967

The Income tax on health insurance premiums is included in other costs as per note 3 above,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pard of the financial stotemenis for the vear ended 30 Seprember 2023 (contined)

6 Intangible Fived Assels

As at 30 September 2023 Software Total
€ 3
Cost
At 30 September 2022 14,377,174 14,377,174
Additions during the vear 1,803,995 1,803,995
isposals duning the year E -
Al 30 Seplember 2023 16,181,169 16,081,169
Amartisation
At 30 Seplember 2022 8,597,880 H.507,580
Amortisation for the year 1,011 381 1,001 381
Disposals during the year - -
AL 30 Seplember 2023 0,599 241 9509261
MNet book value at 30 September 2023 [ R 6,581,908
As at M Sepiember 2022 Saltware Tatal
€ €
Cosi
At 30 Scpiember 2021 12,710,161 12,710, 161
Additions durning the vear | 667013 1,667,013
Dizposals during 1he vear - -
At 30 Septomber 2022 14,377,174 14,377,174
Amaortisation
AL 30 September 2021 T H6S040 7565040
Amortisation for the vear 732,840 732,840
Disposals during the vear - -
At 30 Scplember 2022 £,507 880 B,5497 880
Net book value at 3 Seplember 2022 3,779,294 2,779, 294

The intangible assct relating to the development of Advent Geneva and Paladwne as the
core fund administration system has been fully amortised.

The additions during the current period are related o the further development of the
core admimstration system, with the final migmtion phase currently taking place
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pari of the financial stofemenis for e vear ended 30 Sepiember 2023 (contined)

T Tamgible Fixed Assels

As at 30 September 2023 Furniture & Sofiware Computer Total
Equipment Equipment

£ 13 E €
Cost
Ar 30 Scptember 2022 1. 498,550 TI5, 783 3,055,118 5319461
Additions during the vear 146,887 11,731 87,592 246,210
Dhsposals during the vear - - - -
At 30 September 2023 1,645,437 787514 3,142,720 5875671
Depreciation
AL 30 September 2022 1,336,543 736,628 2,457,931 4,531,102
Depreciation for the vear T7.204 A5.819 AT19 436,762
Disposals during the year - - - .
An 30 Seprember 2023 1,413,747 772,457 2,751,660 4,967,864
Net book value at 30
September 2023 231,600 15,057 361,060 607,807
As at 30 Sepiember 2022 Furniture & Sofiware Compuier Total

Equipment Equipment

€ € € €
Cost
Ax 30 Seprember 2021 1, 3844635 73916 2,610,824 4,749,205
Additions during the vear 14,085 21,567 A4 304 380,256
Disposals during the vear - - - -
Al30 Scptember 2022 1 498 550 775,783 3,055,128 5329461
Depreciation
Ar 30 September 2021 1.277 604 694 K20 2003 833 4066257
Depreciation for the year SR.4934 41 Kk RIS N 464 845
Dhsposals during the year - - - -
AL 30 September 2022 1336543 76628 2457931 4531102

Net book valuc ar 30
September 2022 | 62,007 19,155 507,197 ToR, 350
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the fnancial statemenis for the vear arded 30 Sepiomber 2023 fcontineed)

8  Debilors: amounts falling due within one yvear

30 Seprember 30 September

1023 2022

E €

Fee debtors 5166913 4,080,347

Prepayments and VAT recoveries 3015665 31.357.671

Other debtors B, 360 116,691

Short term asset on denvatives A52.810 242 438

Amount oowved by related companics 3,063,540 2. TR0 AT

Corporation Tax Asset - 3221

Deferred ax 2,514,700 2,808,136
Interest Reccivable 301,665 -

14,591,653 | 4,288 94

The deferred tax asset recorded above ncludes an amount of €2 576,349 [ September 2022- €2711,174)
that refates to the recognition of unused tax losses. The net reversal of the deferred tax asset expected 10
oceur in the next reporting period s €361, 204, due 1© the on-going profitability of the company,

The Company has no further unrccognised deferred tax assets for 2023 or 2022

The amount owed by the related companies includes o balance relating to services as outlined in the
management services agreement. The balance 18 unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

9 Cash at bank and in hand and curreni asset invesimenis

30 Seprember 30 September
023 2022
€ £
Cash aif ik cned in hond

Current accounts 4,411,799 5833802
Callable deposits 10,596, 167 045 hdi
15,007,966 35,800 468
Crirrend assed imvesiment 22.200.2040 -

Term deposits with credit institution
22200 20HD .

Callable depesits are repayable on demand. Deposits at credit institutions include term deposits with
aturities of less than one vear,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pard of the financial statemenis for the year ended 30 September 2023 fcantinted)

10 Creditors: amounts falling due within ong year
30 September 30 Seplember

2023 2022
L3 €

Accruals 3.512,942 3470376
Corporation tax 40,123 -
Interest payable - 450149
Trade creditors 139011 322,786
Short term Labiluy on dervatives B1.895 247 385
Amount owed to parent 821,593 521,593
Amount ewed o related companics 409,530 420,029
5,006,094 5,327,188

Accruals include creditors in relation w PAYE of €340,313 (2022: €433.427). PRSI of
€216, 706 (2022: €240, 351 ) and other taxes of £64 994 (2022: €78777).

The amount owed 1o the parent company is unseeured and interest free.

The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined
in the services agreement. The balance is unsecurced and interest free and repavable on demand.

11 Called up share capital
30 September 30 September

2023 022
€ E
Avetherised
00,00 ordinary shares of GBP £1 cach
100 M1 (WM} prdinary shares of EUR €1 cach
Allatted, called up and fully paid
A0, 000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 cach 492338 402 338
62,500,000 ardinary shares of ELUR €1 each 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992 335 61,992 338
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the firancial statemenis for the vear ended 30 Sepiomber 2023 fcomtineed)

12 Additional paid in eapital
30 September 30 Seplember

2023 2022

€ £

Additional paid in eapital 4,050,000 4.050,000
4. 050,000 4050000

In vonnection with £4.05 millon of the todal amounts received o date by the Company under
the terms of the subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, ihe
Dhrectors noted the resolution made in September 2003 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust {Ireland)
Limited (the “Parent Company™) that they would not demand repayment of the loans and that
they are repavable solely at the volition of the Company, Accordingly, as these amounts have
now been confirmed as non-repayable and do not bear interest or carmy any other ceonomic
obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financial position from long-term
liabilitics o capital, in order fo better reflect the capital nature of the ransactions

13 Commitmenis

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 September 30 Seprember

1023 2022
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ £ E L3

Operating leases which expire;

Within one year TOREI1 18480 TUR 891 12,20}
In the sccond to fifth vears inclusive 1,323,789 36,960 2,032 650 -
Over five vears - - - -

LOAL6H0 55440 2,741,571 1210

Undor an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company seerctarial
and gencral administration and suppornt services to SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited and
Sumitomo Mitsu Trust Bank Limited {London Branch) o custody compamy based in the UK.
In return, the Companics have agreed that a foe will be paid for the services provided,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the firancial stotements for the year ended 30 September 2023 feontineed)

14 Pension cosis
30 September 30 September

2023 022

€ €

Pension charge for vear 1,130,512 Q0,282
Pension charge payable at end of year 72,760 72,751

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive dinectors and
employees, During th year the retirement age was raised from 640 o 63 years of age,

15 Helated parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitome Mitsui Trust Holdings Ing. whose
consolidated financial statements are publicly available. The Company 15 availing of the
cxempiion under Section 33 of FRS 102 *Related Party Disclosures’ to not disclose
transactions with other group undenakings which would be eliminated on consolidation in the
financial statements of the group.

16 Ultimate parént company

The Company’s immediate parent unsdertaking is Sumitormo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited, a
company incorporated in lreland, The Company ‘s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.. a company incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the
financial statements arc consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsiw Trost Holdings Ine.
Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. are available 1o
the public and may be obtined from [-4-1 Manmouchi, Chivoda-ku, Tokye 100-8233, Japan.

I'he smallest group i which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by
Sumueme Misw Trust (Iecland) Limnted. Copics of the financial sttements of Sumitoma

Mitsui Trust {Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5,
Hareourt Centre, Hareourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

17 Post balance sheet events

There were no post balanee sheet events which require amendment 1o or disclosure in the
financial statements,
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming part of the financial statemenis for the vear arded 30 Seprember 2023 (continued)

18 Financial imstrumenis = Hedge accounting

The following forward forcign curreney contracts were open as at 30 Seplember 2023,

Buy Eurn Unrealised Unrealised Total
Gain {Loss) Unrealised
Ciaim |
i Luss)
Sell US Daollar
S2, 4040 100} 2,197,941 £1,598 (E45,934) (E44,330)
Sell Japanese Yen
YOS5, 000,000 6,564,328 £349 839 - £349 539
Sell British
Pounds
£2,9(M1 W00 E3 275 396G F1.323 (E3696]) (E35 A3R)
£352 810 (EX2 805) €264 915

These cash Mow hedges will sende quarterly over the period | December 2023 — 30 September
2024, The fair value on the open coniracts was ealeulated using WM Reuters forward [x rales,
Dunng the vear a gain of €466 236 (2022: loss of €61 420) was reclassified to the income
statement, having previously been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
staterment in accordance with the cash flow hedping policy. Mo collateral exists for amy
derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Assels
Forward
CUrTrency EA52810 E352.810
contracts
Total - EISL810 - €352.810
Linbilities
Forward
currency £82.895 €82.805
contracts
Toral - €81.895 - €82.895

Unrealised futwre gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recogmised directly
in the statement of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive mcome (page
I 1), in accordance with the Company’s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pare of the financial statements for the year orded 30 Sepfomber 2023 feontineed)

18  Financiil instromenis - Hedge accounting {coitimued )

The following forward foreign curreney contracts were open as at 30 September 2022,

Buy Euro Unrealised Unrealised Taial
Gain {Loss) Unrealised
Caaim |
{Laoss)
Sell US Daoltar
S2 350 (60 €2.175,720 €14 6 (E19% 220) (E1R5,160)
Sell Japanese Yen
YT 300 001 O E5 360,671 1A 9510 (E24 H50) LTI |
Sell British
Pounds
2 RS0,000 €3,229,408 £63,428 (£23,306) €40,122
€242 438 (E247.385) (€4.947)

These cash flow hedges will seule quarerly over the perod | Decemiber 2022 - 30 September
2023, The fair value on the open contracts was caleulated using W Reuters forward fi rates.
Dunng the vear a loss of €61,420 (2021 gun of €234,683) was reclassified to the income
staternent, having previously been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
stafement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. Mo collateral exists for any
derivative coniracs.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Assets
Forward
EUFTENCY €242.438 €242.438
contracts
Total - €242 438 - €242.438
Linbilities
Forward
cUrrency €247 385 €247 385
contracts
Total - £247.385 - €247 385

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly
in the statement of financial position and the statement of ather comprehensive meome (page
11}, in accordance with the Company’s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

MNotes
Forming pari of te fnancial stotements for the yeor ended 30 Seprember 2023 feomtineed)

19 Guarantee under Ivish Companies Act, 2014

Under Secuon 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies Act, 20014 compames registered in Ireland
may be exempted from filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilitics are
irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent Company, shich is required 1o be a registered Company of
o Member State of the European Union, The Parcnt Company must incorporate the results of
the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company have been consolidated
into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ircland) Limined
has agreed to irevocably guarantee the habilines of the Company as at 30 September 2023, in
accordance with Section 357 of the A

20 Approval of the Dinancial statements

The Onanc il stutements were approved by the board of directors on 23 January 2024,
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2024 31
2024 31 2023 30

( ) C ) ( ) « )
7,388,443 1,218,280 6,581,908 1,085,291
452,461 74,606 607,807 100,221
7,840,904 1,292,887 7,189,715 1,185,512
8,615,272 1,420,572 8,268,938 1,363,465
4,096,666 675,499 3,063,540 505,147
2,307,988 380,564 2,514,700 414,649
0 0 0 0
500,415 82,513 391,665 64,582
296,958 48,965 352,810 58,175
37,576,789 6,196,037 37,208,166 6,135,254
53,394,088 8,804,151 51,799,819 8,541,272
(4,516,775) (744,771) (3,651,953) (602,171)
(40,123) (6,616) (40,123) (6,616)
0 0 0 0
(1,220,623) (201, 269) (1,231,123) (203,000)
(100, 281) (16,535) (82,895) (13,669)
55,357,190 9,127,847 53,983,440 8,901,329
62,992,338 10,386,807 62,992,338 10,386,807
4,050,000 667,805 4,050,000 667,805
139,090 22,935 212,328 35,011
(13,271,226) (2,188,292) (15,575, 288) (2,568,209)
1,446,988 238,594 2,304,062 379,917
55,357,190 9,127,847 53,983,440 8,901,329
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31
2024 31 2023 30
12
20,136,046 3,320,233 38,906,748 6,415,334
589,595 97,218 584,573 96,390
20,725,641 3,417,451 39,491,321 6,511,724
(19,071,941) (3,144,772) (36,887, 230) (6,082,335)
() 1,653,700 272,679 2,604,091 429,389
0 0 (40,951) (6,752)
(206,712) (34,085) (259,078) (42,719)
D) 1,446,988 238,594 2,304,062 379,917
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(Wellington Management Company LLP)

2023 12 31
344 ( 524 )
2024 193
( ) 2024
12,511
1928
2024 320
@ ( )
(SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited)
2024 2.50 ( 412 ) 120,000 ( 2,349 )
(
) 1993

)
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) 2024 10
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(A) 1989 1893 1972
1990 1989
1989 1989 78
1985 12 20 85/611 EEC 2011
2011 352
2009/65/EC 2016
2019 2022
2022 262
2022 2022 442
UCITS 1990 UCITS 1990
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1994
2021 2020
2015 ICAV
ICAV ICAV
D
(i)
(i)
(iii) CCF
(iv)
@
(b)
(v) ICAV
UCITS ICAV CCF UCITS
AlF 1990
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2005 CCF 24
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viii

(4)
ICAV CCF
UCITS AIF
UCITS AIF 2017 14
EU 2017 1131
(1) UCITS 8 UCITS

UCITS
EU EU EU EU

UCITS
UCITS
AlF

FDI
2.
21UCITS 1 10%

22UCITS 11
10%
144A UCITS

221
222 UCITS
UCITS
23 UCITS 10%
UCITS %
40%
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24 2.3 10% EU
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UCITS %
UCITS 80%
25 23 10% EU
EU EU
35%
2624 25 2.3 40%
27UCITS 20%
UCITS 20%
2.8 oTC UCITS
%
EEA 1988
EEA
10%
29 2.3 2.7 2.8
20%
291
292
293 OTC
2.10 23 24 25 2.7 2.8 29
35%
211 2.3 24 2.5 2.7 2.8 29
20%
2.12UCITS EU EU EU
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41UCITS UCITS 230/2019 - 2013
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20%
4241 35%
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52UCITS
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522 523 5.2.4
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6.3 FDI UCITS
6.4 FDI

(1) AIF AIF
AIF
1. AIF
1.1 3.(A)(@)(N1
111 AIF
AIFM
AIF
AIF

112 AlF
AlF AlF

113 AlF
114 AlF

208/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.1.4.1 AIF
1.1.4.2 AIF
1.1.4.3 AIF
1.1.4.4 AIF
115 AIF
(A1
1.1.6 AIF 1 AIF
AIF
AIF
1.17. / 3.(A)@)(N122. 123 1.3.1.
1.2 AIF
1.2.1. AIF
20%
122 3.(A)A)(IN1.2.4. AIF
20%
AIF
35%
1.2.3. 3.(A)@)(1)1.1.1. AIF
20%
1.2.4. AIF
20% 100%
20% AIF
13 AIF
1.3.1. AIF 10%

30%

209/262



1311

1.3.1.2. EEA

13.13.

1.3.1.4. AIF
1315

14 AlF

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

1.4.1. 3.(A)(@)(11)1.4.4.

1.4.2. 3.(A)(4)(11)1.4.4.

30%
143. 30%
14.4.
1.4.5.
1.4.6.
15 AlF
151
1511
1512
15.2.
UCITS

EEA
1988 7
30%
AIF 20%

AIF

AIF AIFM
AIF
FDI

AIF oTC

AIF
AIF  FDI
69 (5)

210/262

AlF

AlF

0000000000000000000
EU

AlF

AlF

AlIFM

AlF

AlF 10%

5%



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.3. AIF oTC
AIF
FDI
2, AIF
2.1 AIF
30%
3.(A)@)(1N1.2.1. 3.(A)@)(1N1.2.2.
2.2 AIF
3. AIF
31 AIF AIF AIF
32 AIF 397
33 AIF
FDI
3.4FDI AIF
FDI
35
4, AIF
41  AIF
42  AIF AIF
43  AIF 397
44  AIF
FDI

4.5 AlF FDI

211/262



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.6 AlF
5. AlF
51 AlF
AlF
5%
5.2 AlF
AlF
20%
5.3 AlF 30%
AlF
54 AlF 25%
55 AlF 25%
AlF
50%
6. AlF
6.1 AlF 20%
6.2 AlF 30%

AlF
AlF

212/262



8.2

8.3

9.2

9.3

9.4FDI

9.5

10.

10.1

@(1.4.2.

AlF

AlF

AlF

AlF

FDI

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30% AIF
AIF 30%
AIF 3.(A)
AIF
AIF
AIF
AIF
AIF
AIFM
AIF
AIF AIF
397
AIF
FDI
AIF
AIF

213/262



10.2

10.3
FDI
10.4

10.5

11 50%
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12. ELTIF

121 ELTIF
(€Y
(b) 2009 65 EC 50 (1)
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Independent auditors” report to the unitholders of Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund
Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Monthly Dividend High Yield Fund's financial statements:
give atrue and fair view of the Fund’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 March 2024 and of
its results for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish
law).
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements,
which comprise:
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2024;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended,;
the Statement of Changesin Equity for the year then ended;
the Schedule of Investments as at 31 March 2024; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the accounting policies.

Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”) and
applicable law.

Our responsihilities under 1SAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statementsin Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern for aperiod of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

In auditing the financia statements, we have concluded that the manager’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financia statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee asto the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon. The manager is responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materialy misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is
amaterial misstatement of the financial statements or amaterial misstatement of the other information. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Alternative Investment Fund Manager’s Responsibilities set out on
page 8, the manager is responsible for the preparation of the financia statementsin accordance with the applicable
framework giving atrue and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund' s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors ” responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting alimited number of items for testing, rather than
testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk
characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population
from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the IAASA
website at:

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f -

a98202dc9c3a/Description_of auditors responsibilities for_audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors report.
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Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in accordance with
the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 and for no other purpose. We do
not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin, Ireland

12 July 2024
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
(continued)

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 30 September 2023 set out on pages 10 to 32, which comprise the income statement, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and related notes, including
the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1.The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicablein the UK and
Republic of Ireland issued in the United Kingdom by the Financial Reporting Council.

In our opinion:

the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company
as at 30 September 2023 and of its profit for the year then ended,;

the financia statements have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

the financia statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (I1SAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard
issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financia statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. The other information comprises the information included in the directors report, directors and other
information and statement of director's responsibilities. The financial statements and our auditor's report thereon
do not comprise part of the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Based solely on our work on the other information undertaken during the course of the audit, we report that:
we have not identified material misstatementsin the directors report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors report is consistent with the financial statements; and
in our opinion, the directors report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained al the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be
readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors remuneration
and transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible
for: the preparation of the financia statementsincluding being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view; such
internal control asthey determineis necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’ s ahility to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no readlistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilitiesis provided on IAASA’s website at
https://iaasa.ie/publications/descripti on-of -the-auditors-responsi biliti es-for-the-audit-of -the-financi al statements/

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’ s members those matters we
arerequired to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern Date: 29 January 2024
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Satutory Audit Firm

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC,

Dublin
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